
TAFT	CITY	COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR	AGENCY	
JOINT	REGULAR	MEETING	AGENDA	

TUESDAY,	MAY	17,	2016	
CITY	HALL	COUNCIL	CHAMBERS	
209	E.	KERN	ST.,	TAFT,	CA	93268	

	
AS	A	COURTESY	TO	ALL	‐	PLEASE	TURN	OFF	CELL	PHONES	

	
Any	writings	or	documents	provided	to	a	majority	of	the	City	Council	regarding	any	 item	on	
this	agenda	are	made	available	for	public	inspection	in	the	lobby	at	Taft	City	Hall,	209	E.	Kern	
Street,	Taft,	CA	during	normal	business	hours	(SB	343).	

	
REGULAR	MEETING	 	 																												6:00	P.M.	
	
Pledge	of	Allegiance	
Invocation	
Roll	Call:	 Mayor	Miller	

Mayor	Pro	Tem	Noerr	
Councilmember	Krier	
Councilmember	Bryant	
Councilmember	Hill	

	
1. 	 PROCLAMATION	–	RELAY	FOR	LIFE	DAY	

	
2. PROCLAMATION	–	PEACE	OFFICERS	MEMORIAL	DAY	AND	POLICE	WEEK	

	
3. PROCLAMATION	–	CORRECTIONAL	OFFICER	AND	CORRECTIONAL	EMPLOYEE	WEEK	

	
4. PROCLAMATION	–	PUBLIC	WORKS	WEEK	

	
5. 	 PRESENTATION	–	GOVINVEST	–	LIABILITY	CALCULATOR	

	
6. CITIZEN	REQUESTS/PUBLIC	COMMENTS	
	

THIS	 IS	 THE	 TIME	 AND	 PLACE	 FOR	 THE	 GENERAL	 PUBLIC	 TO	 ADDRESS	 THE	 CITY	 COUNCIL	 ON	
MATTERS	WITHIN	 ITS	 JURISDICTION.	STATE	LAW	PROHIBITS	THE	COUNCIL	FROM	ADDRESSING	ANY	
ISSUE	NOT	PREVIOUSLY	INCLUDED	ON	THE	AGENDA.		COUNCIL	MAY	RECEIVE	COMMENT	AND	SET	THE	
MATTER	FOR	A	SUBSEQUENT	MEETING.		PLEASE	LIMIT	COMMENTS	TO	FIVE	MINUTES.	
	

7. COUNCIL	STATEMENTS	(NON	ACTION)	
	

8. DEPARTMENT	REPORTS	
	

9. CITY	MANAGER	STATEMENTS	
	
10. CITY	ATTORNEY	STATEMENTS	
	
11. FUTURE	AGENDA	REQUESTS	
	

********************************************************************************************	
	

CONSENT	CALENDAR	ITEMS	12	–	22					
	
	 All	 items	listed	on	the	Consent	Calendar	shall	be	considered	routine	and	will	be	enacted	by	one	roll	call	

vote.	There	will	be	no	separate	discussion	of	 these	 items	unless	a	member	of	 the	City	Council	 requests	
specific	items	to	be	removed	from	the	Consent	Calendar	for	separate	action.		Any	item	removed	from	the	
Consent	Calendar	will	be	considered	after	the	regular	business	items.	Are	there	any	items	on	the	consent	
calendar	that	any	member	of	the	public	would	like	to	comment	on?	
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12. MINUTES	

May	3,	2016	Regular		
	

	 Recommendation	–	Approve	as	submitted.	
	
13. PAYMENT	OF	BILLS		

Warrant#050616	 Check	No.82500‐82579	 $	224,973.55	
	 		
	 Recommendation	–	Approve	payment	of	the	bills.	
	
14. 	 ANNUAL	AUDITED	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	FOR	2014‐2015	
	
	 Recommendation	–	Motion	to	receive	and	file	the	Annual	Audited	Comprehensive	Financial	
	 Reports	for	the	year	ended	June	30,	2015.	
	
15. 	 PHASES	3,	4,	AND	5	OF	PROFESSIONAL	SERVICES	AGREEMENT	WITH	RADIAN	DESIGN	GROUP,	INC.	

	 FOR	TAFT	TRANSIT	CENTER	
	
	 Recommendation	 –	 Motion	 to	 approve	 Phases	 3,	 4,	 and	 5	 of	 a	 Professional	 Services	
	 Agreement	 with	 Radian	 Design	 Group,	 Inc.	 for	 Construction	 Documents,	 Agency	 Review	 and	
	 Approval,	 and	 Bidding	 preparation	 services	 for	 the	 Taft	 Transit	 Center	 in	 an	 amount	 not	 to	
	 exceed	$53,550.	
	

16. 	 RECEIVE	AND	ACCEPT	RECORDS	MANAGEMENT	NEEDS	ASSESSMENT	REPORT	FROM	GLADWELL	
	 GOVERNMENTAL	SERVICES,	INC.	

	
	 Recommendation	 –	Motion	 to	 receive	and	accept	 the	Records	Management	Needs	Assessment	
	 Report	from	Gladwell	Governmental	Services,	Inc.	
	
17. 								2016‐2017	APPROPRIATIONS	LIMIT	
	
	 Recommendation	–	Motion	to	adopt	resolution	entitled	A	RESOLUTION	OF	THE	CITY	COUNCIL	OF	THE	
	 CITY	OF	TAFT	ESTABLISHING	APPROPRIATIONS	LIMIT	FOR	2016‐2017.	
	
18. 	 DEPARTMENT	OF	RESOURCES	RECYCLING	AND	RECOVERY	(CALRECYCLE)	GRANT	

	
	 Recommendation	–	Motion	to	adopt	resolution	entitled	A	RESOLUTION	OF	THE	CITY	COUNCIL	OF	THE	
	 CITY	OF	TAFT	AUTHORIZING	SUBMITTAL	OF	APPLICATION(S)	FOR	ALL	CALRECYCLE	GRANTS	FOR	
	 WHICH	THE	CITY	OF	TAFT	IS	ELIGIBLE.	
	

19. 	 ARAMARK	FOOD	SERVICE	AGREEMENT	AMENDMENT	#4	
	
	 Recommendation	–	Motion	to	approve	the	Food	Service	Agreement	Amendment	#4	between	the	City	of	
	 Taft	and	Aramark	Correctional	Services,	LLC,	and	to	authorize	the	Mayor	to	execute	Amendment	#4.	
	 	

20. 	 PURCHASE	 OF	 SUNRIDGE	 SYSTEMS	 RIMS	 E‐911	 DATA	 ENGINEERING	 FOR	 THE	 E‐911	MAPPING	
	 SYSTEM	FOR	THE	POLICE	DEPARTMENT	DISPATCH	CENTER	

	
	 Recommendation	–	Motion	to	approve	$	2,500.00	from	the	Asset	Forfeiture	Fund	to	purchase	Sunridge	
	 Systems	RIMS	E‐911	Data	Engineering	for	the	E‐911	Mapping	System.			
	
21. 	 APPROVAL	OF	USDA	REQUIRED	RESOLUTION	IN	CONNECTION	WITH	AGREEMENT	FOR	FUNDS	TO	

	 MODIFY	AND	UPGRADE	WASTEWATER	TREATMENT	FACILITY	
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	 Recommendation	 –	 Motion	 to	 adopt	 a	 resolution	 entitled	 A	 RESOLUTION	 OF	 THE	 CITY	 COUNCIL	
	 OF	THE	CITY	OF	TAFT	PROVIDING	FOR	THE	APPROVAL	OF	THE	UNITED	STATES		 DEPARTMENT	
	 OF	AGRICULTURE	FORM	LOAN	RESOLUTION	REQUIRED	IN		 CONNECTION	 WITH	 THE	 EXECUTION	
	 AND	DELIVERY	OF	CERTIFICATES	OF		PARTICATION	 SECURED	 BY	 AN	 INSTALLMENT	 PURCHASE	
	 AGREEMENT	 THAT	 WILL	 PROVIDE	 FUNDS	 TO	 MODIFY	 AND	 UPGRADE	 THE	 CITY’S	 EXISTING	
	 WASTEWATER	TREATMENT	FACILITY.	
	 	

22. 	 SPECIAL	EVENT	PERMIT	–	CHRISTIAN	SERVICE	EVENT	HELD	BY	IGLESIA	DE	JESUCRISTO	CANAAN	
	 ON	THE	CORNER	OF	6TH	ST	AND	MAIN	ST	AT	THE	RAILS	TO	TRAILS	STAGE	ON	MAY	21,	2016.	

	
	 Recommendation	 –	Motion	 to	 approve	 a	 resolution	 entitled	A	RESOLUTION	OF	THE	CITY	COUNCIL	
	 OF	 THE	 CITY	 OF	 TAFT	 APPROVING	 A	 SPECIAL	 EVENT	 PERMIT,	 	 AUTHORIZING	 	 EDGAR	 	 	 	 GIL	
	 OF	 IGLESIA	 DE	 JESUCRISTO	 CANAAN	 TO	 HOLD	 A	 CHRISTIAN	 SERVICE	 EVENT	 ON	 CITY	
	 PROPERTY	ON	THE	 CORNER	OF	 SIXTH	 STREET	AND	MAIN	 ST	AT	THE	RAILS	TO	TRAILS	 STAGE	
	 ON	MAY	21ST,		 2016.	
	
					 ***********************************************************************************************	

	CLOSED	SESSION	
	 	 	

A. CONFERENCE	WITH	REAL	PROPERTY	NEGOTIATOR,	CRAIG	JONES‐	CITY	MANAGER	
Government	Code	Section	54956.8	–	1100	E.	Ash	Street.	
	
	

	 ADJOURNMENT	
AMERICANS	WITH	DISABILITIES	ACT	

(Government	Code	Section	54943.2)	

The	City	of	Taft	City	Council	Chamber	is	accessible	to	persons	with	disabilities.	Disabled	individuals	who	need	special	assistance	(including	transportation)	to	

attend	or	participate	in	a	meeting	of	the	Taft	City	Council	may	request	assistance	at	the	Office	of	the	City	Clerk,	City	of	Taft,	209	E.	Kern	Street,	Taft,	California	or	

by	 calling	 (661)	 763‐1222.	 Every	 effort	 will	 be	 made	 to	 reasonably	 accommodate	 individuals	 with	 disabilities	 by	 making	 meeting	 material	 available	 in	

alternative	formats.	Requests	for	assistance	should	be	made	five	(5)	working	days	in	advance	of	a	meeting	whenever	possible.	

AFFIDAVIT	OF	POSTING	

I,	Darnell	Porter,	declare	as	follows:	

	

That	I	am	the	Deputy	City	Clerk	for	the	City	of	Taft;	that	an	agenda	was	posted	on	a	public	information	bulletin	board	located	near	the	door	of	the	Civic	Center	

Council	Chamber	on	May	12,	2016,	pursuant	to	1987	Brown	Act	Requirements.	

	

I	declare	under	penalty	of	perjury	that	the	foregoing	is	true	and	correct.	

Executed	May	12,	2016,	at	Taft,	California.	

	

Date/Time	 	 	 Signature	 	 	 	 	 	
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REGULAR	MEETING	 	 																			6:00	P.M.	
	
The	 May	 3,	 2016,	 regular	 joint	 meeting	 of	 the	 Taft	 City	 Council/Taft	 Successor	 Agency,	 held	 in	 the	
Council	Chamber	at	Taft	City	Hall,	209	East	Kern	Street,	Taft,	CA	93268,	was	opened	by	Mayor	Randy	
Miller	 at	 6:01:27	 PM.	 The	 Pledge	 of	 Allegiance	 was	 led	 by	 Council	 Member	 Bryant,	 followed	 by	 an	
invocation	given	by	Greg	Haslow	of	Calvary	Temple.		
		
PRESENT:		 Mayor	Randy	Miller	and	Mayor	Pro	Tem	Dave	Noerr	

Council	Members	Orchel	Krier,	Josh	Bryant	and	Renee	Hill	
City	Manager	Craig	Jones	and	City	Attorney	Jason	Epperson	
City	Clerk	Yvette	Mayfield	

	
	

1. CITIZEN	REQUESTS/PUBLIC	COMMENTS	
	

Steve	Shayer,	Commissioner	from	the	Kern	County	Superior	Court	and	who	is	currently	running	
for	 a	 judge	 seat,	 introduced	 himself	 to	 the	 Council	 and	 shared	 some	 information	 on	 his	
background	and	qualifications.	
	

2. COUNCIL	STATEMENTS	(NON	ACTION)	
	
Council	Member	Noerr	commented	on	current	events.	
	
Mayor	Miller	 reminded	everyone	 that	now	 is	 the	 time	 to	 address	weeds	before	 the	weather	
warms	up.	
	

3. 	 PLANNING	COMMISSION	REPORT	
	
Chairman	Orrin	reported	that	at	their	last	meeting	the	Commission	recognized	Arbor	Day	and	
started	the	Municipal	Service	Review	Update.	
	

4. DEPARTMENT	REPORTS	
	
There	were	none.	
	

5. CITY	MANAGER	STATEMENTS	
	
	 There	were	none.	
	
6. CITY	ATTORNEY	STATEMENTS	
	
	 There	were	none.	
	
7. FUTURE	AGENDA	REQUESTS	
	

Noerr	requested	that	the	unfunded	liability	presentation	given	to	the	Finance	Committee	be	
brought	forth	and	presented	to	the	whole	Council.		Miller	concurred.	
	
Miller	asked	that	the	high	school	Tennis	Team	be	acknowledged	with	a	certificate	recognizing	
their	winning	season.		Noerr	concurred.	

	
	
							******************************************************************************************	
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CONSENT	CALENDAR	ITEMS	8	‐	13	
	

 Hill	removed	Item	11.	
	
Motion:	 Moved	by	Bryant,	seconded	by	Noerr	to	approve	consent	calendar	items	8‐10,	12	

and	13.	
	
AYES:	 Noerr,	Krier,	Bryant,	Hill,	Miller	
PASSED:	 	 5‐0	 	 	 	
	
	
8. MINUTES	

April	19,	2016	Regular		
	

	 Recommendation	–	Approve	as	submitted.	
	
9. PAYMENT	OF	BILLS		

Warrant#042216	 	 Check	No.	82385‐82496	 $	935,137.05					
	 Warrant#042216	 			 Check	No.	82497‐82499	 $					4,335.63	
	
	 Recommendation	–	Approve	payment	of	the	bills.	
	
10. TREASURER’S	REPORT	
	

Recommendation	–	Motion	to	receive	and	file	Treasurer’s	Report	dated	April	19,	2016	
for	the	Month	of	January	2016.	

	
12. 								ZONING	ORDINANCE	AMENDMENT	2016‐02:	FENCES	AND	WALLS	
	
	 Recommendation	–	
	 1.		Conduct	Public	Hearing;	and	

2.	Motion	to	approve	and	amend	the	City	of	Taft	Municipal	Code	entitled	AN	ORDINANCE	OF	
THE	 CITY	 COUNCIL	 OF	 THE	 CITY	 OF	 TAFT	 APPROVING	 ZONING	 ORDINANCE	
AMENDMENT	NO.	2016‐02,	AN	AMENDMENT	OF	 SECTION	6.11.90	OF	TITLE	6	OF	THE	
TAFT	ZONING	ORDINANCE	RELATING	TO	FENCES	AND	WALLS.	(Ordinance	No.	816‐16)	

	
13. 	 RECEIVE	AND	ACCEPT	NEEDS	ASSESSMENT	REPORT	FROM	STANTEC	
	
	 Recommendation	–	Motion	to	receive	and	accept	the	Needs	Assessment	Report	from	Stantec.	
	 	
					 *******************************************************************************************	

		
11. ZONING	ORDINANCE 	AMENDMENT	2016‐01:	GARAGE 	OR	YARD	SALES	

	
Motion:	 Moved	 by	 Noerr,	 seconded	 by	 Bryant	 to	 approve	 and	 amend	 the	 City	 of	 Taft	

Municipal	Code	entitled	AN	ORDINANCE	OF	THE	CITY	COUNCIL	OF	THE	CITY	
OF	TAFT	APPROVING	ZONING	ORDINANCE	AMENDMENT	NO.	2016‐01,	AN	
AMENDMENT	OF	CHAPTERS	1	AND	12	OF	TITLE	6	OF	THE	TAFT	ZONING	
ORDINANCE	RELATING	TO	GARAGE	OR	YARD	SALES.	(Ordinance	No.	815‐16)	

	
AYES:	 Noerr,	Krier,	Bryant,	Miller	
NOES:	 Hill	
PASSED:	 	 4‐1	 	
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Hill	stated	that	she	had	the	same	opinion	of	 this	 item	that	she	had	stated	during	the	first	reading	and	
does	not	agree	with	the	ordinance.	
	
Krier	shared	that	although	he	believes	in	people’s	right	to	have	yard	sales	he	believes	this	ordinance	is	
needed.	
	
Miller	shared	that	he	hopes	to	alleviate	the	issue	of	signs	posted	all	over	town.	 	

	
CLOSED	SESSION		
	

 Closed	Session	was	cancelled.	
	 	 	

A. CONFERENCE	WITH	LEGAL	COUNSEL	–	EXISTING	LITIGATION	
Government	Code	Section	54956.9	(a)	–	Case	Number	S‐1500‐CV‐281650	
	

	 ADJOURNMENT	 With	 no	 further	 business	 to	 conduct	 the	 meeting	 was	 adjourned	 at	
6:30:08	PM.	

	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 ________		
Yvette	Mayfield	 	 	 	 	 	 Randy	Miller	
City	Clerk										 	 	 	 	 	 Mayor	

	
	
 









































 
 

City of Taft Agenda Report 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  MAY 17, 2016 
 
TO:   MAYOR MILLER AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
   
AGENDA MATTER:  
 
ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2014-2015 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
Attached is the Annual Audited Reports for the years ended June 30, 2015, which includes the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), Management Report (City wide), Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Financial Statements (WWTP). Since the City did expend more than $500,000 in 
Federal monies the City was required to prepare a Single Audit, which is attached. 
 
 
On April 27, 2016, the Taft City Finance Committee reviewed the Annual Audited Comprehensive 
Financial Report with the City’s auditor. The committee recommended the financial statements be 
presented to the City Council at this meeting. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion to receive and file the Annual Audited Comprehensive Financial Reports for the year ended 
June 30, 2015. 
 
 
IMPACT ON BUDGET (Y/N):   No 
 
ATTACHMENT (Y/N): YES, Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports dated June 30, 

2015 and Management Report and Auditor’s Communication 
Letter for the City, WWTP Financial Statements and Single 
Audit Report dated June 30, 2015 

  
 
PREPARED BY:   Teresa Binkley, Finance Director 
 
REVIEWED BY:            
CITY CLERK  
 

FINANCE DIRECTOR CITY MANAGER 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To the City Council 
City of Taft, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Taft, California (City) as of 
and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Taft,  California, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in 
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter  
 
Change in Accounting Principles 

As discussed in Note 1 of the notes to the basic financial statements, effective July 1, 2014, the City adopted the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions and Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date.  
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Management has omitted the Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic 
financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison 
information on page 59 and 60, the schedule of plan’s proportionate share of net pension liability on page 61 and 
the schedule of pension contributions on pages 62 and 63, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Taft, California’s basic financial statements. The WWTP Capital Projects budgetary 
comparison schedule, combining and individual non-major governmental and fiduciary fund financial statements 
and schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial 
statements.  
 
. 
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The WWTP Capital Projects budgetary comparison schedule, combining and individual non-major governmental 
and fiduciary fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual non-major 
governmental and fiduciary fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 31, 2016, on our 
consideration of the City of Taft, California’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the City of Taft, California’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 

 
 
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP 
Culver City, California 
March 31, 2016 
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ASSETS
Cash and investments 3,562,073$        5,941,351$        9,503,424$        
Restricted cash and investments 1,181,943          1,181,943          
Accounts receivable 1,792,012          3,163,731          4,955,743          
Interest receivable 628                    592                    1,220                 
Internal balances 3,042,825          (3,042,825)                               
Notes receivable 3,279,740          3,279,740          
Prepaid expenses 33,357               2,564                 35,921               
Inventory 1,412                 1,412                 
Deposits 17,362               17,362               
Loan receivable - Successor Agency 2,535,490          2,535,490          
Capital assets not being depreciated 1,992,238          617,857             2,610,095          
Capital assets being depreciated 18,103,330        10,433,838        28,537,168        
Capital assets, accumulated depreciation (10,742,193)       (5,985,244)         (16,727,437)       

Total assets 23,600,912        12,331,169        35,932,081        

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
City's pension contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date 766,525             596,078             1,362,603          

Total deferred outflows of resources 766,525             596,078             1,362,603          

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 123,703             352,265             475,968             
Accrued payroll 97,152               127,602             224,754             
Unearned revenue 353,495             1,609,564          1,963,059          
Deposits payable 9,989                 40,907               50,896               
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 35,859               29,854               65,713               
Due in more than one year 3,281,972          2,226,076          5,508,048          

Total liabilities 3,902,170          4,386,268          8,288,438          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Differences between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 952,822             717,968             1,670,790          

Total deferred inflows of resources 952,822             717,968             1,670,790          

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 9,353,375          6,248,394          15,601,769        
Restricted for:

Streets and roads 90,732               90,732               
Public safety 191,628             191,628             
Community development 4,047,236          4,047,236          
Capital projects - WWTP 3,831,558          3,831,558          

Unrestricted 1,997,916          1,574,617          3,572,533          

Total net position 19,512,445$     7,823,011$       27,335,456$      

                                                                  

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

 Governmental 
Activities 

 Business-type 
Activities  Total 

CITY OF TAFT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015
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CITY OF TAFT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Expenses
Governmental activities:

General government (2,351,146)$        2,148,937$         768,668$                  29,237$        
Public safety (3,442,217)          377,754              303,999                    
Public works (1,535,285)          194,430              602,303                    599,461        
Health and welfare (55,511)               49,839                7,131                        
Community development (580,858)             147,124                    

Total governmental activities (7,965,017)          2,770,960           1,829,225                 628,698        

Business-type activities:
Community correctional facility (CCF) (11,899,191)        15,162,535         
Federal WWTP (935,742)             989,332              
Sewer (944,048)             1,106,559           
Refuse (831,251)             865,450                                           
Transit (900,474)             428,424              335,450                    157,518        

Total business-type activities (15,510,706)        18,552,300         335,450                    157,518        

Total government (23,475,723)$     21,323,260$      2,164,675$               786,216$     

General revenues and transfers:
Taxes:
    Property taxes
    Sales tax
    Other taxes
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of fiscal year
Prior period adjustments
Net position, beginning of fiscal year, restated

Net position, end of fiscal year

See accompanying notes to financial statements

Program Revenues

 Charges for 
Services 

Operating Grants and 
Contributions 

Capital      
Grants and 

Contributions 
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Position

595,696$          -$                 595,696$            
(2,760,464)       (2,760,464)          

(139,091)          (139,091)             
1,459                1,459                  

(433,734)          (433,734)             

(2,736,134)       (2,736,134)          

3,263,344         3,263,344           
53,590              53,590                

162,511            162,511              
34,199              34,199                
20,918              20,918                

                     
3,534,562         3,534,562           

(2,736,134)       3,534,562         798,428              

1,372,304         1,372,304           
1,475,787         1,475,787           

526,768            526,768              
198,178            46,563              244,741              
613,749            613,749              

(180,547)          180,547                                   

4,006,239         227,110            4,233,349           

1,270,105         3,761,672         5,031,777           

21,673,915       6,726,525         28,400,440         
(3,431,575)       (2,665,186)       (6,096,761)          
18,242,340       4,061,339         22,303,679         

19,512,445$     7,823,011$       27,335,456$       

Business-type 
Activities Total

Governmental 
Activities
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CITY OF TAFT
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS General
Revolving Loan 

Fund CDBG
Revolving Loan 

Fund Home TDA
Cash and investments 500$                 477,488$          125,934$          -$                 
Receivables:                      

Accounts 984,798            596                                        791,006            
Interest 172                   39                     11                                          
Notes                      1,727,305         1,096,684                              

Due from other funds 2,546,141                                                                        
Prepaid items 33,357                                                                             
Inventory                                                                                     
Loan receivable from Successor Agency 2,535,490                                                                        

Total assets 6,100,458$      2,205,428$      1,222,629$      791,006$         

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 110,598$          -$                 -$                 -$                 
Accrued payroll 90,110                                                                             
Due to other funds                                                                700,624            
Deposit payable 9,989                                     
Unearned revenue 353,495                                                                           

Total liabilities 564,192                                                      700,624            

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred revenue 77,692              1,727,305         1,096,684         

Total deferred inflow of resources 77,692              1,727,305         1,096,684                              

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 2,491,155                                                                        
Restricted 478,123            125,945            90,382              
Unassigned 2,967,419                                                                        

Total fund balances 5,458,574         478,123            125,945            90,382              

Total liabilities, deferred inflow of  
resources, and fund balances 6,100,458$      2,205,428$      1,222,629$      791,006$         

                                                                                    

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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WWTP Capital 
Projects

 Total Non-
major 

Governmental 
Funds  Total 

2,493,945$       453,396$          3,551,263$         

                     15,612              1,792,012           
350                   56                     628                     

                     455,751            3,279,740           
1,254,561                              3,800,702           

                                          33,357                
                     1,412                1,412                  
                                          2,535,490           

3,748,856$       926,227$          14,994,604$       

-$                 10,155$            120,753$            
                     4,582                94,692                
                     57,253              757,877              

9,989                  
                                          353,495              

                     71,990              1,336,806           

455,751            3,357,432           

                     455,751            3,357,432           

1,412                2,492,567           
3,748,856         436,696            4,880,002           

                     (39,622)            2,927,797           

3,748,856         398,486            10,300,366         

3,748,856$       926,227$          14,994,604$       
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CITY OF TAFT
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Fund balances of governmental funds 10,300,366$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statements of net position are 
different because:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental activities, 
are not current financial resources. Therefore, they are not reported in the
governmental funds.

Total capital assets 20,095,568$       
Accumulated depreciation (10,742,193)       9,353,375           

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds. Long-term liabilities include 
compensated absences and net pension liability. (3,317,831)          

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions:  In governmental 
funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions are not
reported because they are applicable to future periods.  In the statement of net
position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions are reported.

Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions (952,822)$          
Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions 766,525              (186,297)             

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities
such as vehicle maintenance to individual funds. The assets and the liabilities of the 
internal service fund must be added to the statement of net position
(not included compensated absences ($5,400)) 5,400                  

Certain revenues are deferred in the governmental funds because the availability 
criteria is not met. These revenues are not deferred in the statement of net position. 3,357,432           

Net position of governmental activities 19,512,445$      

                       
See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF TAFT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

General
Revolving Loan 

Fund CDBG
Revolving Loan 

Fund Home TDA
REVENUES

Property taxes 1,372,304$       -$                 -$                 -$                 
Sales taxes 1,475,787                                                                        
Other taxes 526,768                                                                           
Licenses and permits, and fees 312,364                                                                           
Fines and forfeitures 8,182                                                                               
Use of money and property 198,178            2,351                978                                        
Intergovernmental 997,989            216,481            31,843              368,521            
Current services charges 2,318,050                                                                        
Other 613,749                                                                           

Total revenues 7,823,371         218,832            32,821              368,521            

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 1,419,774                                                                        
Public safety 3,498,974                                                                        
Public works 1,160,631                                                                        
Health and welfare                      
Community development 556,320            14,344              39,267                                   

Capital outlay 1,145,500                                                                        

Total expenditures 7,781,199         14,344              39,267                                   

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures 42,172              204,488            (6,446)              368,521            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 466,120                                                                           
Transfers out                                                                (368,521)          

Total other financing sources (uses) 466,120                                                      (368,521)          

Net change in fund balances 508,292            204,488            (6,446)                                   

Fund balances, beginning of fiscal year 5,056,970         273,635            132,391            90,382              
Prior period adjustments (106,688)          
Fund balances, beginning of fiscal year, restated 4,950,282         273,635            132,391            90,382              

Fund balances, end of fiscal year 5,458,574$      478,123$         125,945$         90,382$           

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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WWTP Capital 
Projects

 Total Non-
major 

Governmental 
Funds Total

-$                 -$                 1,372,304$         
                     1,475,787           
                     526,768              
                     312,364              
                     5,720                13,902                

29,237              3,824                234,568              
                     1,143,411         2,758,245           
                     134,806            2,452,856           
                     22,268              636,017              

29,237              1,310,029         9,782,811           

                     879,591            2,299,365           
                     115,835            3,614,809           
                     19,011              1,179,642           

6,309                6,309                  
                                          609,931              
                     234,694            1,380,194           

                     1,255,440         9,090,250           

29,237              54,589              692,561              

131,200                                 597,320              
                     (409,346)          (777,867)             

131,200            (409,346)          (180,547)             

160,437            (354,757)          512,014              

3,588,419         653,155            9,794,952           
100,088            (6,600)                 

3,588,419         753,243            9,788,352           

3,748,856$       398,486$          10,300,366$       

13
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CITY OF TAFT
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net change in fund balances of governmental funds 512,014$            

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
differs from the amounts reported in the statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balance because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the costs of those assets are allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This activity is reconciled as follows:

Cost of assets capitalized 1,435,323$      
Depreciation expense (697,352)         737,971              

Certain notes receivable are reported in the governmental funds as expenditures and 
then offset by deferred revenue as they are not available to pay current expenditures.
Likewise, when the note is collected, it is reflected in revenue. This is the net change 
between notes receivable collected and issued. (165,374)            

In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are made.  
In the statement of activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis.  This fiscal year, 
the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and actual employer contributions was:
Pension costs 376,441              

Revenues that are measurable but not available.  Amounts are not recorded as revenue
under the modified accrual basis of accounting. (201,768)            

Debt repayments are reported as an expenditures in the governmental funds.
The repayment is not an expense in the statement of activities as it is a 
reduction of a long-term liability. The balance for compensated absences reflects
the difference between absences accrued and absences paid. 

Compensated absences 10,821                

Change in net position of governmental activities 1,270,105$        

                       

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF TAFT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

CCF Federal WWTP Sewer  Refuse 
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments 4,020$              2,950,833$      2,058,943$      927,555$          
Restricted cash and investments                                                                                     
Receivables:

Accounts 2,605,020         82,444              69,229              90,313              
Interest                      282                   211                   99                     

Prepaid items 2,066                                                                               
Deposits                                           17,362                                   

Total current assets 2,611,106         3,033,559         2,145,745         1,017,967         

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, not being depreciated 11,850              541,511                                                      
Capital assets, being depreciated 186,987            5,370,252         2,908,734         601,714            
Capital assets - accumulated depreciation (42,636)            (3,162,160)       (1,534,992)       (418,764)          

Total noncurrent assets 156,201            2,749,603         1,373,742         182,950            

Total assets 2,767,307         5,783,162         3,519,487         1,200,917         

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
City's pension contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date 514,440            6,717                6,737                14,272              

Total deferred outflows of resources 514,440            6,717                6,737                14,272              

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 313,529            8,477                3,332                14,190              
Accrued payroll 108,533            1,504                1,442                2,430                
Due to other funds 2,038,379                                                                        
Unearned revenue                                                                                     
Deposits payable                                           18,382              22,525              
Current portion of compensated absences 22,361              1,143                1,166                1,900                

Total current liabilities 2,482,802         11,124              24,322              41,045              

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 67,084              3,428                3,499                5,701                

Net pension liability 1,843,899         24,075              24,149              51,154              

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,910,983         27,503              27,648              56,855              

Total liabilities 4,393,785         38,627              51,970              97,900              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Differences between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 619,637            8,090                8,115                17,190              

Total deferred inflows of resources 619,637            8,090                8,115                17,190              

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 156,201            2,749,603         1,373,742         182,950            
Unrestricted (1,887,876)       2,993,559         2,092,397         917,149            

Total net position (deficit) (1,731,675)$     5,743,162$      3,466,139$      1,100,099$      

                                                                                    
See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Business-type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities 

Transit 

 Total 
Enterprise 

Funds 
Internal Service 

Fund

-$                  5,941,351$      10,810$            
1,181,943         1,181,943         

316,725            3,163,731                              
                     592                                        

498                   2,564                                     
                     17,362                                   

1,499,166         10,307,543      10,810              

64,496              617,857                                 
1,366,151         10,433,838                           
(826,692)          (5,985,244)                            

603,955            5,066,451                              

2,103,121         15,373,994      10,810              

53,912              596,078            

53,912              596,078            

12,737              352,265            2,950                
13,693              127,602            2,460                

1,004,446         3,042,825                              
1,609,564         1,609,564                              

                     40,907                                   
3,284                29,854              5,400                

2,643,724         5,203,017         10,810              

9,851                89,563                                   
193,236            2,136,513                              

203,087            2,226,076                              

2,846,811         7,429,093         10,810              

64,936              717,968            

64,936              717,968            

1,785,898         6,248,394                              
(2,540,612)       1,574,617                              

(754,714)$        7,823,011$      -$                  
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CITY OF TAFT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

CCF Federal WWTP Sewer Refuse 
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services 15,137,563$    989,332$         971,961$         865,450$         
Connection and installation fees                                           4,356                                     
Other 24,972                                   130,242                                 

Total operating revenues 15,162,535      989,332            1,106,559        865,450            

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 4,383,307        59,008              55,713              119,403            
Training and development 13,003                                                                             
Contract and professional services 2,767,162        409,671            66,586              335,856            
Maintenance and operations 221,774            25,524              523,685            126,285            
Materials and supplies 225,772            48,721              3,107                15,861              
Insurance 104,130            15,592              15,592              15,592              
Utilities 364,017            38,439              211                                        
Administrative service charges                      93,584              82,330              89,065              
Depreciation 42,636              179,008            80,292              40,605              
Leases and rents 1,878,590                                                                       
Bad debt expense                                           599                   2,716                
Other operating expenses 1,874,178        66,195              115,933            85,868              

Total operating expenses 11,874,569      935,742            944,048            831,251            

Operating income (loss) 3,287,966        53,590              162,511            34,199              

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest earnings on investments                      23,497              15,841              7,225                
Interest expense (24,622)                                                                           
Intergovernmental                                                                                     

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (24,622)            23,497              15,841              7,225                

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION AND TRANSFERS
Capital contribution                                                                                     
Transfers in                                                                                     
Transfers out                      (27,271)            (27,271)            (27,271)            

Total capital contribution and transfers                      (27,271)            (27,271)            (27,271)            

Changes in net position 3,263,344        49,816              151,081            14,153              

Total net position (deficit), beginning of fiscal year (2,719,530)       5,723,055        3,344,859        1,149,073        
Prior period adjustments (2,275,489)       (29,709)            (29,801)            (63,127)            
Total net position (deficit), beginning of fiscal year, restated (4,995,019)       5,693,346        3,315,058        1,085,946        

Total net position (deficit), end of fiscal year (1,731,675)$     5,743,162$      3,466,139$      1,100,099$      

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities

Enterprise Funds

Transit 
 Total Enterprise 

Funds 
Internal Service 

Fund

348,531$         18,312,837$            164,187$         
                     4,356                                            

79,893              235,107                                        

428,424            18,552,300              164,187            

502,293            5,119,724                116,502            
2,055                15,058                                          
2,933                3,582,208                                     

197,673            1,094,941                8,331                
12,211              305,672                   4,893                
15,592              166,498                                        

7,415                410,082                   4,793                
                     264,979                   15,912              

134,499            477,040                                        
                     1,878,590                                     
                     3,315                                            

11,979              2,154,153                13,756              

886,650            15,472,260              164,187            

(458,226)          3,080,040                                     

                     46,563                                          
(13,824)            (38,446)                                         
335,450            335,450                                        

321,626            343,567                                        

157,518            157,518                                        
262,360            262,360                                        

                     (81,813)                                         

419,878            338,065                                        

283,278            3,761,672                                     

(770,932)          6,726,525                
(267,060)          (2,665,186)                                    

(1,037,992)       4,061,339                                     

(754,714)$        7,823,011$              -$                 
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CITY OF TAFT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Business-type Activities

 Enterprise Funds 

CCF Federal WWTP Sewer
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash received from customers and users 15,587,728$     906,888$          1,104,246$       
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (7,369,059)       (716,055)          (804,736)          
Cash paid to employees for services (4,646,726)       (62,257)            (58,937)            

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 3,571,943         128,576            240,573            

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition, proceeds, and construction of capital assets                     (73,947)                                
Interest paid                                         
Capital contribution                                                             

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities                     (73,947)                                

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities: 
Intergovernmental grant received                                                             
Cash received (paid) to/from other funds, including interest (3,570,836)                                               
Transfers in (27,271)            (27,271)            

Net Cash provided (used) by Non-Capital Financing Activities: (3,570,836)       (27,271)            (27,271)            

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received (307)                 23,474              15,781              

Net Cash provided (used) by investing activities (307)                 23,474              15,781              

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 800                  50,832              229,083            

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Fiscal Year 3,220               2,900,001         1,829,860         

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Fiscal Year 4,020$              2,950,833$       2,058,943$       

                                                            
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments 4,020$              2,950,833$       2,058,943$       
Restricted cash and investments                                                                         

Total cash and cash equivalents 4,020$              2,950,833$       2,058,943$       

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
  Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss) 3,287,966$       53,590$            162,511$          
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

  net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 42,636              179,008            80,292              
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 425,193            (82,444)            (1,403)              
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 19,640              89                    89                    
(Increase) decrease in deposits                                         (17)                   
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources - pension (270,500)          (3,532)              (3,542)              
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources - pension 619,637            8,090               8,115               
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability (675,530)          (8,819)              (8,847)              
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 59,927              (18,418)            3,218               
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll 32,089              232                  225                  
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue                                                             
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable                                         (893)                 
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 30,885              780                  825                  
Total adjustments 283,977            74,986              78,062              

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 3,571,943$       128,576$          240,573$          

                                                            
See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities

Internal
 Enterprise Funds Service

Refuse Transit Totals Fund

852,022$          1,052,550$       19,503,434$         164,187$          
(665,153)          (244,560)          (9,799,563)           (45,240)            
(126,712)          (535,287)          (5,429,919)           (120,137)          

60,157              272,703            4,273,952            (1,190)              

                    (223,298)          (297,245)                                  
                    (13,824)            (13,824)                                    
                    157,518            157,518                                   
                    (79,604)            (153,551)                                  

                    335,450            335,450                                   
580,118            297,200            (2,693,518)                               
(27,271)            262,360            180,547               
552,847            895,010            (2,177,521)                               

7,207               (56)                   46,099                                     
7,207               (56)                   46,099                                     

620,211            1,088,053         1,988,979            (1,190)              

307,344            93,890              5,134,315            12,000              

927,555$          1,181,943$       7,123,294$          10,810$            

                                                                                    

927,555$          -$                 5,941,351$          10,810$            
                        1,181,943         1,181,943            

927,555$          1,181,943$       7,123,294$          10,810$            

34,199$            (458,226)$        3,080,040$          -$                 

40,605              134,499            477,040                                   
(12,351)            122,893            451,888                                   

203                  3,286               23,307                 891                  
                                        (17)                                           

(7,504)              (28,348)            (313,426)              
17,190              64,936              717,968               

(18,741)            (70,794)            (782,731)              
5,887               2,012               52,626                 1,554               

360                  1,909               34,815                 544                  
                    501,233            501,233                                   

(1,077)                                  (1,970)                                      
1,386               (697)                 33,179                 (4,179)              

25,958              730,929            1,193,912            (1,190)              

60,157$            272,703$          4,273,952$          (1,190)$            
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Private-Purpose 
Trust Funds Agency Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments 95,656$                65,708$               
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 465,448                3,245,924            
Interest receivable 120                       
Capital assets - nondepreciable 1,698,163             
Capital assets - being depreciated 407,116                
Capital assets - accumulated depreciation (215,950)               

Total assets 2,450,553           3,311,632$          

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 597                       13,656$               
Accrued payroll 625                       
Accrued interest payable 93,152                  
Deposits payable 159,000               
Due to inmates 51,493                 
Compensated absences 15,393                  
Due to bondholders 3,087,483            
Loan payable to City of Taft 2,535,490             
Bonds payable 3,230,000             

Total liabilities 5,875,257           3,311,632$          

NET POSITION
Restricted for debt service 372,296                
Unrestricted (3,797,000)            

Total net position (deficit) (3,424,704)$         

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

CITY OF TAFT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS      
June 30, 2015
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Private Purpose 
Trust Funds 

Additions: 
 Investment revenue 129,582$          

Taxes and assessments 272,269            

Total additions 401,851            

Deductions: 
Community development 103,162            
Interest expense 197,335            
Depreciation 10,178              

Total deductions             310,675 

Change in net position 91,176              

Net Position (Deficit) - July 1, 2014 (3,521,064)       
Prior Period Adjustment 5,184                
Net Position (Deficit) - July 1, 2014, Restated (3,515,880)       

Net Position (Deficit) - June 30, 2015 (3,424,704)$     

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

CITY OF TAFT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
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CITY OF TAFT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The City of Taft, California (the City), which was founded on November 7, 1910, has a population of 
9,052 living within an area of 15.05 square miles. It is located in Western Kern County 119 miles 
northwest of Los Angeles, 280 miles south of San Francisco, and 37 miles southwest of Bakersfield in the 
foothills of the western edge of southern San Joaquin Valley. 
 
The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  
 
A. Reporting Entity  

 
In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all 
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity 
was made by applying the criteria set forth in the U.S. GAAP. The basic—but not the only—criterion 
for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body’s ability to 
exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial 
interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but 
are not limited to, the selection of the governing authority, the designation of management, the ability 
to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The other criteria used to 
evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is the 
existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the City is able to exercise 
oversight responsibilities. Based upon the application of these criteria, the following is a brief review 
of each potential component unit addressed in defining the City’s reporting entity. 
 
Included within the reporting entity: 
 

 Taft Public Financing Authority. A nonprofit public benefit corporation created in 1994 
through a Joint Exercise of Powers agreement between the City of Taft and the Taft 
Community Development Agency established for the purpose of, among other things, issuing 
bonds to provide financing and refinancing for public capital improvements of the City and 
Agency. (Separate financial statements are not prepared for this entity.) 

 
 Taft Public Improvement Corporation. A nonprofit public benefit corporation, created in 

1989 to provide services for the betterment of the City. These services include constructing 
various capital improvements for the City, assisting with the creation or expansion of the 
City’s facilities, the purchase and sale of real or personal property and assisting the City to 
finance, acquire, construct and install such property. (Separate financial statements are not 
prepared for this entity.) 

 
 Greater Taft Transportation Authority. The Greater Taft Transportation Authority (GTTA) 

was formed in April 2001 as a joint exercise of powers between the City of Taft and Taft 
Community Development Agency pursuant to the California Government Code Section 6500 
et seq. (Separate financial statements are not prepared for the GTTA.) 
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CITY OF TAFT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
B. Accounting and Reporting Policies 

 
The City has conformed to the pronouncements of the GASB, which are the primary authoritative 
statements of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to 
state and local governments.  

 
C. Fund Accounting 

 
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, deferred inflow/outflow of resources, fund 
equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Government resources are allocated to and accounted 
for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which 
spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped, in the financial statements in this 
report, into generic fund types and broad categories as follows: 
 
Governmental Funds: 
 

 General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds. 

 
 Special Revenue Funds. The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of 

specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. 
 

 Debt Service Fund. The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal and interest.  

 
 Capital Projects Fund. The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources 

to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those 
financed by Proprietary Funds). 

 
Proprietary Funds: 
 

 Enterprise Funds. The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed 
and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise – where the intent of the 
City Council is that the costs (expenses including depreciation) of providing goods or 
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges.  
 

 Internal Service Fund – Garage Fund. The Garage Fund is used to account for the cost of 
providing vehicle maintenance to operating funds.  Costs are recovered by user charges.  
 

Fiduciary Funds: 
  

 Agency Funds. The Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent. 
These funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement 
of results of operations.  
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CITY OF TAFT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
C.   Fund Accounting (Continued) 
 

 Private Purpose Funds. These funds are for disbursements made only for those activities to 
wind down the business of the former Taft Community Development Agency (TCDA). These 
activities include, but are not limited to the payment of debt service related to the bonds 
issued by the TCDA as well as other contractual commitments.  
 

D. Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus 
 

Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The City’s Government-wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position and a 
Statement of Activities (including changes in Net Position). These statements present summaries of 
governmental and business-type activities of the City. Fiduciary activities of the City are not included 
in these statements.  
 
These statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis 
of accounting. Accordingly, all the City’s assets and liabilities, including capital assets and 
infrastructure as well as long-term debt, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. 
The Statement of Activities presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. The Statement of Activities 
demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are offset by program 
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly categories: 1) charges for services, 2) operating 
grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Charges for services include 
revenues from customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function. Grant and contributions include revenues restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not 
properly included among program revenue are reported as general revenue.  

  
Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to interfund 
activities, payables, and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been 
eliminated.  
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet, and a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and aggregated non-
major funds. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in fund 
balances as presented in these statements to the net position presented in the government-wide 
financial statements. The City has presented all major funds that met the qualifications of GASB 
Statement No. 34.  
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CITY OF TAFT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D.  Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus (Continued) 

 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or financial flow measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities are 
generally included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance is their net current assets, 
which is considered only to be a measure of available spendable resources. Governmental fund 
operating statements present a summary of sources and uses of available spendable resources during a 
period by presenting increases and decreases in net current assets. Under modified accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they both become measurable 
and available to finance expenditures of the current period. Accordingly, revenues are recorded when 
received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual (generally 60 days after year-end) are 
recognized when due. Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, sales taxes, interest 
revenues, charges for services, and special assessments. Licenses, fines, and permit revenues are not 
susceptible to accrual because they generally are not measurable until received in cash.  
 
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the 
related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long term obligations which are 
recognized when due. Because of their current financial resources focus, expenditure recognition for 
governmental fund types excludes amounts represented by non-current liabilities. Since they do not 
affect net current assets, such long-term amounts are not recognized as governmental fund 
expenditures or fund liabilities.  
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
  

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  
 
The Revolving Loan Fund – CDBG was established to account for Community Development 
grants by using Community Development program revenue. 
 
The Revolving Loan Fund – HOME was established to account for funds as direct loans for 
rehabilitation or reconstruction of dwellings owned and occupied by qualifying low and moderate 
income households.  
 
The TDA Fund was established to receive and expend the City’s allocation of sales tax under SB 
325. This bill reduced the State’s percentage of sales tax by 1.4 percent and allowed the counties 
within the State of California to increase their sales tax percentage by ¼ percent. The funds 
generated by this ¼ percent are allocated to the counties and a portion of this is then allocated to 
the cities within each county and restricted to street purposes. 
 
The WWTP Capital Projects Fund is used to account for capital asset acquisition and construction 
of the wastewater treatment plant.  
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CITY OF TAFT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D.  Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus (Continued) 

 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements  
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows. All proprietary fund types 
are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting and the economic resources measurement 
focus. Their revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred. All 
liabilities associated with their activity are also included in the Statement of Net Position.  
 
Proprietary Funds include enterprise funds. The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 
  

The Federal WWTP Fund is used to account for the operations related to building and 
maintaining a wastewater treatment plant for the federal prison.  
 
The CCF Fund is used to account for the operations of the Community Correctional Facility. The 
CCF provides housing and program services to the California Department of Corrections. The 
City was notified by the State of California the CCF contract was cancelled on November 2011.  
However, the City reopened the CCF facility on March 1, 2014 and the State of California is 
continuing lease payments to the City through January 2017. 
 
The Sewer Fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s sewer system.  
 
The Transit Fund is used to record the operations of the Taft Area Transit Dial-A-Ride service. 
The enterprise collects fares from users of the service. 
 
The Refuse Fund is used to record the operation of the refuse removal enterprise of the City. The 
enterprise collects user fees for the collection of refuse from businesses and residents in the City 
of Taft.  

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary 
fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s proprietary funds 
are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition 
are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. The principal operating revenue of the internal 
service fund is charges to other funds.  Operating expenses for the internal service fund include the 
costs of vehicle maintenance. 
 
Internal Service Fund Statements 
 
The City reports Internal service funds consisting of the central garage fund. These funds are 
established to account for any activity that provides goods or services to other funds or departments 
of the primary government and its component units, or to other governments, on a cost-
reimbursement basis. See proprietary funds above for accounting for internal service funds.  
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CITY OF TAFT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D.  Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus (Continued) 
 

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements  
 

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net of Position and a Statement of 
Changes in Net Position. The fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency 
capacity for others and therefore, are not available to support City programs. Since these assets are 
being held for the benefit of a third party, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide 
statements.  

 
The City’s fiduciary funds are agency funds and private purpose trust funds.  These funds use the 
accrual basis of accounting, Agency funds are used to account for amounts held for debt service 
related to conduit debt, and amounts held on behalf of inmates housed in the Community Correctional 
Facility. The Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and therefore do not 
involve measurement of results of operations. The private purpose funds are used to account for the 
redevelopment agency successor agency by the City as trustee. Trust funds are accounted for on the 
economic resources measurement focus.  

  
E. Budgetary Policy and Control 

 
General Budget Policies 
 
The City Council approves each year’s budget submitted by the City Manager prior to the beginning 
of the new fiscal year. Public meetings are conducted prior to its adoption by the Council. All 
appropriations lapse at year-end. The City Council has the legal authority to amend the budget at any 
time during the fiscal year. The City Manager has the authority to make adjustments to the operating 
budget within each fund. Transfers of operating budget appropriations between funds or to or from 
appropriated reserve accounts, use of unappropriated fund balances, cancellation of appropriations 
and all changes in capital improvement project budgets require the approval of the City Council.  
 
The City maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the 
appropriated budget approved by the City Council. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at 
which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) for the operating budget is at 
fund level. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the 
fiscal year for the Governmental Fund Types.  
 

F. Cash/Investment Policy 
 

In order to maintain an effective investment program, all cash, except certain trust and agency cash 
and restricted cash, is pooled, and amounts not required for day-to-day financial transactions are 
invested as approved by the City Council on a pooled basis and earnings are allocated to each fund on 
the basis of its average cash balance at the end of each quarter.  
 
GASB Statement No. 31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External 
Pools”, requires governmental entities to report certain investments at fair value in the balance sheet 
and recognize the corresponding change in the fair value of investments in the year in which the 
change occurred. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, the City has adjusted certain 
investments to fair value (when material).  
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CITY OF TAFT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
G.   Capital Assets and Depreciation  
 

Capital assets, which include buildings, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure assets (roads, 
bridges, etc.) are reported in the government-wide financial statements as well as proprietary fund 
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of 
more than $500. Sensitive items with costs below $500 are also included. Such assets are recorded at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.  
 
Capital assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. This 
means the cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to 
expense each year until the asset is fully depreciated. The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost 
of capital assets over the useful life of these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each 
year represents that year’s pro rata share of the cost of capital assets.  
 
Depreciation of capital assets is charged as an expense against operations each year and the total 
amount of depreciation taken over the years, called accumulated depreciation, is reported on the 
Statement of Net Position of the government-wide financial statements as a reduction in the book 
value of capital assets.  
 
The City has assigned the useful lives listed below to capital assets: 
 
 Structures and improvements    20-40 Years 
 Machinery and equipment    5-20 Years 
 Infrastructure 
  Pavement     40 Years 
  Concrete     60 Years 

 
H. Deferred Outflow/Inflow of Resources 
 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and balance sheet will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, 
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until 
then. The City has deferred outflows of resources on pensions in the statement of net position. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and balance sheet will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and 
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has deferred 
inflows of resources-deferred revenue – loans/notes on the fund financial statements and pensions in 
the statement of net position. 
 

I.    Interfund Transactions 
 
Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as fund revenues or expenditures/expenses.  
Transactions, which constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses are recorded as 
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund, and as reductions of the expenditures/expenses in the 
reimbursed fund.  
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CITY OF TAFT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
J.    Capitalized Interest 

 
No interest cost relating to construction was capitalized during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.  

 
K.   Compensated Absences  

 
 Sick leave liability  

Generally, employees earn one day of sick leave per month with a maximum accumulation of 720 
hours. All employees are entitled to payment for accumulated sick leave up to the lower of 50 
percent of earned days or forty-five days, upon retirement, death, or disability.  
 

 Vacation leave liability  
Employees earn ten days vacation leave per year, for less than four years of service; from four 
years through nine years of service, fifteen days are earned; from ten years through nineteen years 
of service, twenty days are earned; and after nineteen years, twenty-five days. All employees are 
able to accrue an amount equal to twice the employee’s annual accrual, after which further 
accrual will cease. Accumulated vacation is payable upon termination. The compensated 
absences accrual at June 30, 2015, amounted to $143,437 for Governmental Activities and 
$119,417 for Business-type Activities.   
 

L.   Property Taxes 
 
Property Taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on July 1 
and are payable in two installments which are delinquent after December 10 and April 10. Unsecured 
personal property taxes become due on July 1st of each year and are delinquent, if unpaid by August 
31st. Kern County bills and collects the property taxes and remits them to the City in installments 
during the year. City property tax revenues are recognized on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting method. The County is permitted by State Law (Proposition 13) to levy taxes at 1 percent 
of full value (at time of purchase). The City receives a share of this basic levy proportionate to what it 
received in the 1976 to 1978 period.  

 
M.  Cash Flows 

 
Proprietary fund type cash and investments are used in the preparation of the statement of cash flows 
as investments are pooled and are not allocated to specific funds. Each of these funds’ share of pooled 
cash and investments is considered cash for purposes of the statement of cash flows since these 
amounts are immediately available for withdrawal. For the purposes of the Proprietary Funds’ 
Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all investments with a maturity of three months or less 
when purchased to be cash equivalents.  

 
N.  Use of Restricted Resources 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. Restricted resources are 
defined as resources received from outside agencies dedicated for specific purposes (grants for 
example).     
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CITY OF TAFT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
O.   Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

 
P.   Pensions 
 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related 
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the 
Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
CalPERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported as 
fair value. 
 

Q.  New Accounting Pronouncements 
 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.” This 
Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2014. The objective of this Statement is to 
improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This 
Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, “Accounting for Pensions by State and 
Local Governmental Employers” as well as the requirements of Statement No. 50, “Pension 
Disclosures”. This Statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred 
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense related to pensions. Implementation 
of the GASB Statement No. 68 did have an impact on the City’s financial statements for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2015, see Note 1 (P) – Pensions, Note 9 – Pensions Plan, and Note 16 – Prior 
Period Adjustments. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 71 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 71, “Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date.”  This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2014.  The 
objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition of GASB 
Statement No. 68 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.”  The issue relates to amounts 
associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or nonemployer 
contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government’s 
beginning net pension liability.  This statement will eliminate the source of potential significant 
understatement of restated beginning net position and expense in the first year of implementation of 
GASB Statement No. 68 in the accrual-basis financial statements of employers and nonemployer 
contributing entities.  Implementation of the GASB Statement No. 71 did have an impact on the 
City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, see Note 1 (P) – Pensions, Note 9 
– Pension Plan, and Note 16 – Prior Period Adjustments. 
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CITY OF TAFT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
A. General Budget Policies 
 

1. The budget adopted by the City Council provides for the general operation of the City. It includes 
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.  

  
2. The City Council approves total budgeted appropriations and any amendments to appropriations 

throughout the fiscal year. All amendments made during the fiscal year are included in the 
budgetary amounts reported herein. The “appropriated budget” covers all City expenditures. 
Actual expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level, which is the legal 
level of budgetary control.  
 

3. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the fiscal year. 
Commitments for materials and services, such as purchase orders and contracts, are recorded as 
encumbrances to assist in controlling expenditures. Appropriations which are encumbered lapse 
at fiscal year-end, and then are added to the following fiscal year’s budgeted appropriations 
 

4. Budgets for the General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, and Debt Service Funds are adopted 
on a basis substantially consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, actual revenues and expenditures can be compared 
with related budgeted amounts without any significant reconciling items.  

 
Budget comparisons are not presented for the Proprietary funds, as the City is not legally required 
to adopt a budget for this type of funds. 

 
 There were no budgets adopted for the following funds: RLF-CDBG (major fund), Revolving 

Loan Fund – Home (major fund), Cal Homes Revolving Loan, and TARP Revolving Loan. 
 

5. Capital projects are budgeted through the Capital Projects Funds. Appropriations for capital 
projects authorized but not constructed or completed during the fiscal year are carried forward as 
continuing appropriations into the following fiscal year’s budget.  

 
6. Under Article XIII-B of the California constitution (the GANN Spending Limitation Initiative), 

the City is restricted as to the amount of annual appropriations from the proceed of taxes, and if 
proceeds of taxes exceed allowed appropriations, the excess must either be refunded to the State 
Controller or returned to the taxpayers through revised tax rates or revised fee schedules, or an 
excess in one year may be offset by a deficit in the following year. For the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2015, based on calculations by City staff, proceeds of taxes did not exceed appropriations. 
Further, section 5 of Article XIII-B allows the City to designate a portion of fund balance for 
general contingencies, to be used for any purpose.  
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NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) 
 
B. Deficit Fund Balances/Net Position 
 

The following funds contained deficit fund balances/net position as of June 30, 2015: 
 

 
 
The City anticipates that future revenue will be sufficient to cover these deficits. 

 
C. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations  
 

Excess of expenditures over appropriations in departments/cost centers of individual funds: 
 

 
  

Major Proprietary Funds:
CCF 1,731,675$    
Transit 754,714        

Nonmajor Governmental Fund:
Landscape Assessment District 39,622          

Final
Expenditures Appropriations Excess

Major Governmental Funds
General Fund

General government 1,419,774$    1,313,380$    106,394$      
Public works 1,160,631      1,122,686      37,945          
Community development 556,320        502,961        53,359          
Capital outlay 1,145,500      253,700        891,800        

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Asset Forfeiture

Public safety 35,131          2,300            32,831          
Landscape Assessment

Public works 19,011          18,321          690              
WWTP

General government 879,591        747,527        132,064        
Capital outlay 234,694        52,500          182,194        



 

36 

CITY OF TAFT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 

NOTE 3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Cash and investments 
at June 30, 2015, consisted of the following: 
 

 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2015 consisted of the following: 
 

 
Investments authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment policy 
 
The table on next page identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California 
Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies 
certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more 
restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not 
address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt 
agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the 
City’s investment policy.  
 

 
  

Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments 9,503,424$    
Restricted cash and investments 1,181,943      

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position:
Cash and investments 161,364        
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 3,711,372      

Total cash and investments 14,558,103$  

Cash on hand 5,285$          
Deposits held by financial institutions 1,966,685      
Investments 12,586,133    

Total cash and investments 14,558,103$  

Authorized Investment Type
Maximum 
Maturity

Maximum 
Percentage/   
Amount of 
Portfolio

Maximum 
Investment in 

One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 Years None None
Certificates of Deposit 5 Years None None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 3 Years 30% None
Passbook Savings Accounts N/A None None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A 50% None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A $50,000,000 $50,000,000
U.S. Agency Securities N/A None None
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NOTE 3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Investment Authorized by Debt Agreements 
 
Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, 
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy. The 
table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustee. The 
table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk.  
 

 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 
to changes in market interest rates. Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s 
investments (including investments held by bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided 
by the table on next page that shows the distribution of the City’s investments by maturity: 
 

 
  

Authorized Investment Type

Maximum 
Investment in 

One Issuer

Maximum 
Percentage/  
Amount of 
Portfolio

Maximum 
Maturity

U.S. Agency Securities None None None
Money Market Mutual Funds None None N/A
Commercial Paper None None 270 days
Certificates of Deposit None None 5 years
Repurchase Agreements None None 180 days
U.S. Treasury Obligations None None 365 days
Time Deposits None None 365 days

Remaining Maturity (in Months)
12 Months  13 to 24 25 to 60

Investment Type or Less Months Months Total

State Investment Pool (LAIF) 2,892,758$    -$             -$             2,892,758$    
Certificates of Deposit 631,857        100,446        2,249,700      2,982,003      
U.S. Agency Securities 3,000,000    3,000,000      
Held by Trustees:

U.S. Agency Securities 363,540        363,540        
Money Market Funds 3,347,832      3,347,832      

Total 6,872,447$    100,446$      5,613,240$    12,586,133$  
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NOTE 3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder 
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California 
Government Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of fiscal 
year-end for each investment type: 
 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The City is in compliance with restrictions imposed by the investment policy, which limits certain types 
of investments. As of June 30, 2015, the City has not invested more than 5% of its total investments in 
any one issuer. Investments guaranteed by the United States Government and investments in mutual funds 
and external investment pools are excluded from this requirement. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk 
that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will 
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
anther party.  
 
The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy 
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than 
the following provisions for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial 
institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an 
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the 
governmental unit). The fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% 
of the total fair value deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to 
secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured 
public deposits.  
 
GASB Statement No. 40 requires that the following disclosure be made with respect to custodial credit 
risks relating to deposits and investments: All of the City deposits with financial institutions (including 
Certificates of Deposit) in excess of federal depository insurance limits were held in pledged collateral 
accounts as described above. 

S&P Rating
Minimum Exempt From 

Investment Type Amount  Legal Rating Disclosure AAA AA+ A Not Rated

State Investment Pool (LAIF) 2,892,758$    N/A -$             -$             -$           -$        2,892,758$    
Certificates of Deposit 2,982,003      N/A 2,982,003      
U.S. Agency Securities 3,000,000      N/A 3,000,000   
Held by Trustees:

U.S. Agency Securities 363,540        N/A 363,540      
Money Market Funds 3,347,832      N/A 3,347,832      

Total 12,586,133$  -$             3,347,832$    3,363,540$  -$        5,874,761$    
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NOTE 3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Custodial Credit Risk (Continued) 
 
As of June 30, 2015, all of the City’s deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository 
insurance limits were held in collateralized accounts.  As of June 30, 2015, the City’s investment in the 
following type was held by the same broker-dealer (Counterparty) that was used by the City to buy the 
security: 
 
Investment Type  Reported Amount 
Certificates of Deposit  $2,982,003 
 
Investment in State Investment Pool 
 
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by 
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of 
California. The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial 
statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the 
entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for 
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized 
cost basis.  
 
LAIF is a governmental investment pool managed and directed by the California State Treasurer and is 
not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. An oversight committee, comprised of 
California State officials and various participants, provided oversight to the management of the fund. The 
daily operations and responsibilities of LAIF fall under the auspices of the State Treasurer’s office. The 
City is a voluntary participant in the investment pool.  

 
NOTE 4 – NOTES RECEIVABLE 
 
The City operates a loan program whereby funds are made available to eligible businesses and individuals 
for various purposes. Grant funds were originally used to start the program and repayments are required 
to be used for the same purpose. As of June 30, 2015, the balance of notes receivable was $ 3,279,740. Of 
this amount, $2,823,989 is deferred housing loans, which are due when the properties are transferred. 
These loans are collateralized by the titles of the properties. The remaining balances are made up of 
CDBG loans made to local businesses. These loans carry interest rates between 1% to 5%.  All the loans 
are deferred revenue offsets.  
 
NOTE 5 – INTERFUND ACTIVITIES  
 
In general, the City uses interfund transfers to (1) move revenues from the funds that collect them to the 
funds that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the 
General Fund to help finance various programs and capital projects accounted for in other funds in 
accordance with budgetary authorization, and (3) move cash to debt service funds from the funds 
responsible for payment as debt service payments become due. 
 
In general, the effect of the interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. 
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NOTE 5 – INTERFUND ACTIVITIES (Continued) 
 
Interfund transfers during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 are as follows:  
 

 
Current interfund balances arise in the normal course of business (i.e. one fund loaning funds to pay for 
current expenditures) and are expected to be repaid shortly after the end of the fiscal year.  The following 
is a summary of interfund balances as of June 30, 2015. 
 

 
In addition, the general fund advanced $2,535,490 (including $77,692 accrued interest) to the Successor 
Agency Capital Projects Fund (formerly the TCDA Capital Projects Funds) within the Private Purpose 
Trust Funds.  During the fiscal year, City recalculated the accrued interest using a lower interest rate as 
required by California Department of Finance.  As a result the accrued interest balance was adjusted 
down from $757,744 to $77,692. 

Transfers In Transfers Out
Major Governmental Funds:

General 466,120$       -$                 
TDA 368,521         
WWTP Capital Projects 131,200         

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Traffic Safety 6,068            
Gas Tax 244,807         
WWTP Special Revenue 158,471         

Major Proprietary Funds:
Federal WWTP                 27,271          
Sewer 27,271          
Refuse 27,271          
Transit 262,360         

Total interfund transfers 859,680$       859,680$       

Due from Due to
(Receivable) (Payable)

Major Governmental Funds:
General 2,546,141$    -$             
WWTP Capital Projects 1,254,561      

Major Proprietary Funds:
CCF 2,038,379      
Transit 1,004,446      

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
TDA 700,624         
Landscape Assessment District 35,387          
Inmate Welfare Trust 21,866          

Total 3,800,702$    3,800,702$    
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 
 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City has reported all capital assets including 
infrastructure in the government-wide statement of net position. The City elected to use the basic 
approach as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 for all infrastructures reporting, whereby depreciation 
expense and accumulated depreciation have been recorded. The following table presents the capital asset 
activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.  
 

 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 
 

  

Balance          Prior Period Balance     
Governmental Activities July 1, 2014 Additions Deletions Transfers Adjustment June 30, 2015
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 1,328,603$    -$             -$             -$             -$             1,328,603$    
Construction in progress 359,848        1,124,673      (823,782)       2,896            663,635        

Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,688,451      1,124,673                      (823,782)       2,896            1,992,238      

Capital assets being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 8,735,928      823,782        9,559,710      
Machinery and equipment 3,413,150      270,374        (158,120)       95,590          3,620,994      
Infrastructure:

Roadway system 4,613,734      40,276          3,433            4,657,443      
Bridges 265,183        265,183        

Total capital assets being depreciated 17,027,995    310,650        (158,120)       823,782        99,023          18,103,330    

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Structures and improvements (5,174,068)     (261,880)       (5,435,948)     
Machinery and equipment (3,130,900)     (224,050)       158,120        11,370          (3,185,460)     
Infrastructure:

Roadway system (1,670,698)     (202,583)       (1,873,281)     
Bridges (238,665)       (8,839)           (247,504)       

Total accumulated depreciation (10,214,331)   (697,352)       158,120                        11,370          (10,742,193)   

Total capital assets, being depreciated
net of accumulated depreciation 6,813,664      (386,702)                       823,782        110,393        7,361,137      

Total Governmental activities capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation 8,502,115$    737,971$       -$             -$             113,289$       9,353,375$    

General government 120,337$      
Public safety 79,195          
Public works 444,888        
Health and welfare 50,514          
Community development 2,418            

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 697,352$      
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION (Continued) 
 
Changes in business-type activities capital assets: 
 

 
Depreciation for business-type activities was charged to functions/programs as follows: 
 

 
NOTE 7 – GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the following changes occurred to the governmental activities 
long-term liabilities: 
 

Compensated Absences 
 
The short-term portion of the liability is determined to be the amount due to employees for future 
absences, which is attributable to services already rendered, and which is expected to be paid during 
the next fiscal year. The general fund is expected to liquidate approximately 75 percent of the 
liability, the WWTP special revenue fund approximately 10 percent, and other funds, the remaining 
15 percent.   

Balance      Balance     
Business-type activities July 1, 2014 Additions Deletions Reclassification June 30, 2015
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 11,850$        -$             -$             -$             11,850$        
Construction in progress 467,564        138,443                        606,007        

Total capital assets not being depreciated 479,414        138,443                                        617,857        

Capital assets being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 5,887,340      158,802        6,046,142      
Machinery and equipment 1,478,961      1,478,961      
Sewer infrastructure 2,908,735      2,908,735      

Total capital assets being depreciated 10,275,036    158,802                                        10,433,838    

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Structures and improvements (3,144,774)    (253,240)       41,848          (3,356,166)    
Machinery and equipment (908,730)       (143,508)       (41,848)         (1,094,086)    
Sewer infrastructure (1,454,700)    (80,292)         (1,534,992)    

Total accumulated depreciation (5,508,204)    (477,040)                                       (5,985,244)    

Total capital assets, being depreciated,
net of accumulated depreciation 4,766,832      (318,238)                                       4,448,594      

Total Business-type activities capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation 5,246,246$    (179,795)$     -$             -$             5,066,451$    

CCF 42,636$        
Federal WWTP 179,008        
Sewer 80,292          
Refuse 40,605          
Transit 134,499        

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 477,040$      
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NOTE 7 – GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the following changes occurred to the governmental activities 
long-term liabilities: (Continued) 
 
 CalPERS Side Fund 
 
       During the 2005-2006 fiscal year, the City was required to participate in the Public Employees   

Retirement System (CalPERS) risk pool. As a result, a side fund was created to account for the 
difference between the funded status of the City’s plan, in addition to the existing unfunded liability. 
The outstanding balance at June 30, 2014 was $198,868. The outstanding balance was restated during 
fiscal year per implementation of GASB Statement No. 68 and No. 71.  See Note 16 for further 
details.                 

         

 
NOTE 8 – BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the following changes occurred to the business-type activities 
long-term liabilities:  

 

 
Compensated Absences 
 
The liability is recorded in the various funds and is determined to be the amount due to employees for 
future absences, which is attributable to services already rendered. The amount estimated to be paid 
during the next fiscal year is classified with current liabilities, with the remainder classified with 
noncurrent liabilities.  
 

NOTE 9 – PENSION PLAN 
 
A. General Information about the Pension Plan 
 

 Plan Descriptions - All qualified employees are eligible to participate in the City’s separate Safety (fire) 
and Miscellaneous (all other) Plans, cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans 
administered by the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a 
common investment and administrative agent for its participating member employers. Benefit provisions 
under the Plans are established by State statute and Local Government resolution. CalPERS  issues 
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, 
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website. 
  

Balance Prior Period Balance Due in
Governmental Activities: July 1, 2014 Adjustment Additions Deletions June 30, 2015 One Year
Compensated Absences 158,437$       -$                 36,158$        (51,158)$       143,437$       35,859$        
Net pension liability 4,087,858      1,434,259      (2,347,723)     3,174,394      
CalPERS side fund obligation 198,868        (198,868)                       

Total governmental activities 357,305$       3,888,990$    1,470,417$    (2,398,881)$   3,317,831$    35,859$        

Balance Prior Period Balance Due in
Business type activities July 1, 2014 Adjustment Additions Deletions June 30, 2015 One Year
Compensated Absences 86,238$        -$             100,870$       (67,691)$       119,417$       29,854$        
Net pension liability 2,919,244      1,100,507      (1,883,238)     2,136,513      

Total business-type activities 86,238$        2,919,244$    1,201,377$    (1,950,929)$   2,255,930$    29,854$        
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NOTE 9 – PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
A. General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued) 
 

 Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. 
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with 
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are 
eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the 
following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death 
Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees' 
Retirement Law. 
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2015, are summarized as follows: 
 

 
 
Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and 
shall be effective on the July l following notice of a change in the rate.  Funding contributions for both 
Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined 
rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the 
fiscal year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to 
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

Tier I Tier II
Hire date Prior to October 3, 1996 On or after October 3, 1996
Benefit formula 2.0% @ 50 2.0% @ 55
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 55 50 - 55
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 2.7% 1.4% to 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 9.50%
Required employer contribution rates 11.53% 9.069%

Tier I PEPRA
Hire date Prior to January 1, 2013 On or after January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 -63 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.4% to 2.4% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 11.032% 6.237%

City Safety Plan

City Miscellaneous Plan
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NOTE 9 – PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
A. General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense were as 
follows: 
 
Contributions – employer (Safety Plan)   $252,658 

Contributions – employer (Miscellaneous Plan)  $380,720 

 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions 
 
As of June 30, 2015, the City reported net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability in the amount of $5,310,907. 
 
The City’s net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net 
pension liability is measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013 rolled forward to June 30, 
2014 using standard update procedures. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.   

 
For  the  fiscal year  ended  June  30,  2015,  the  City  recognized  pension  expense of $754,630. At June 
30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

 

Safety Miscellaneous

Proportion - June 30, 2013 0.03910% 0.04625%
Proportion - June 30, 2014 0.03910% 0.04625%
Change - Increase (Decrease) -                -                  

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual
experience -$                          -$                          

Changes of assumptions -                            -                            

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments -                            (1,582,020)                  

Changes in proportion and differences 
between City contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 140,849                      (88,770)                      

City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 1,221,754                   -                            

1,362,603$                 (1,670,790)$                
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NOTE 9 – PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions (Continued) 
 
$1,221,754 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 
 

 
 
Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations were 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

 

 
(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment 
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation 
 
The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 
valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 
2011. Further details of the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website. 
 
  

Fiscal Year Ended
June 30

2016 (382,485)$           
2017 (382,485)             
2018 (382,485)             
2019 (382,486)             

Safety Miscellaneous
Valuation Date June 30, 2013 June 30, 2013
Measurement Date June 30, 2014 June 30, 2014

Actuarial Cost Method
Entry-Age Normal Cost 
Method

Entry-Age Normal Cost 
Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.50% 7.50%
Inflation 2.75% 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.00% 3.00%
Projected Salary Increase 3.30%-14.20% (1) 3.30%-14.20% (1)
Investment Rate of Return 7.50% (2) 7.50% (2)
Mortality Derived using CalPERS' 

Membership Data for all 
Funds

Derived using CalPERS' 
Membership Data for all 
Funds
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NOTE 9 – PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions (Continued) 
 
Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50% for each Plan. To 
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each 
plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different 
from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. 
Therefore, the current 7.50 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate 
calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.50 percent will be applied to all 
plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed 
report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website. 
 
According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without 
reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return assumption used in 
this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 
basis points. An investment return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65 percent. 
Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher Total Pension Liability and Net Pension 
Liability. CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the difference in calculation and did not find it 
to be a material difference. 
 
CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability 
Management (ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes to 
the discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, CalPERS 
expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB 67 and 68 calculations 
through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year.  CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference 
in calculation until such time as we have changed our methodology. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real  rates  of  return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation)  are developed  for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical 
returns of all the funds' asset  classes, expected  compound  returns were calculated over  the short-term 
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected 
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each 
fund. The expected rate of  return  was  set  by  calculating  the single equivalent expected return  that  
arrived at the same present  value  of benefits  for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term 
and  long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate 
calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 
 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 
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NOTE 9 – PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions (Continued) 
 

 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate -The following presents the net 
pension liability of the Local Government for each Plan, calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, 
as well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 
percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate: 

 

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 
 
  

Asset Class
New Strategic 

Allocation
Real Return Year 

1 - 10(a)
Real Return 

Years 11+(b)

Global Equity 47.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.00% -0.55% -1.05%

Total 100.00%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.

Safety Miscellaneous

1% Decrease 6.50% 6.50%
Net Pension Liability 3,954,426$       5,127,324$        

Current Discount Rate 7.50% 7.50%
Net Pension Liability 2,433,122$       2,877,785$        

1% Increase 8.50% 8.50%
Net Pension Liability 1,179,632$       1,010,882$        
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NOTE 10 – NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES 
 
Governmental and Business -Type Activities 
 
Net Position 
 
GASB Statement No. 63 requires that the difference between assets added to the deferred outflows of 
resources and liabilities added to the deferred inflows of resources be reported as net position. In the 
Government-wide financial statements, proprietary fund financial statements, and private-purpose trust 
fund financial statements, net position is classified as either net investment in capital assets, restricted, or 
unrestricted. 

 
  Net Investment in Capital Assets describe the portion of net position which is represented 

by the current net book value of the City’s capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any 
debt issued to finance these assets. 
 

  Restricted describe the portion of net position, which is restricted as to use by the terms and 
conditions of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other 
restrictions which the City cannot unilaterally alter.  These principally include debt service 
requirements, capital projects, and deferred improvement funds restricted to low and 
moderate income housing purposes. 
 

 Unrestricted describes the portion of net position which is not restricted as to use.  
 

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are depleted first 
before the unrestricted resources are used. 
 
Fund Balances 
 
Fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassigned based 
primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the 
resources in the government funds. 
 
NOTE 11 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets 
including low value vehicle coverage; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. 
The City participates with other public entities in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement, which 
establishes the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority (CSJVRMA) as a common risk 
management and insurance program. The relationship between the City and CSJVRMA is such that 
CSJVRMA is not a component of the City for financial reporting purposes.  
 
CSJVRMA maintains separate records for each year of participation. The records track cash paid to the 
RMA through deposit premium assessments, the City’s self-insurance retention portion of claims paid, 
and the City’s allocation of shared risks. Three years after the close of the workers’ compensation 
coverage year and five years after the close of the general liability coverage year, CSJVRMA assesses the 
status of all members for that year, and either make a refund to a refund to a member if it has a positive 
balance (i.e. payout and reserve experience is less than premium paid) or collects any deficit.  
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NOTE 11 – RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 
Worker’s Compensation 
 
The City is self-insured for the first $50,000 of each claim. The City participates in a risk sharing pool 
through CSJVRMA for claims between $50,000 and $500,000. The CSJVRMA participates in another 
excess pool, which provides workers’ compensation coverage from $500,000 to $1,500,000 and 
purchases excess reinsurance above $5,000,000 to the statutory limit.  
 
General Liability 
 
The City is self-insured for the first $25,000 of each claim. The City participates in a risk sharing pool 
through CSJVRMA for claims between $25,000 and $1,000,000. The CSJVRMA participates an excess 
pool, which provides general liability coverage from $1,000,000 to $3,000,000 and purchases excess 
reinsurance above $3,000,000 to $29,000,000. The CSJVRMA is a consortium of fifty-four cities in San 
Joaquin Valley, California. It was established under the provisions of California Government Code 
Section 6500 et seq. The CSJVRMA is governed by a Board of Directors, which meets three to four times 
per year, consisting of one member appointed by each member city. The day-to-day business is handled 
by a management group employed by the CSJVRMA.  
 
The financial position and results of operations for the CSJVRMA as of June 30, 2015, the most recent 
information available, is presented below: 
 

 
At the termination of the joint powers agreement and after all claims have been settled, any excess or 
deficit will be divided among the cities in accordance with its governing documents. Audited financial 
statements are available from the Central San Joaquin Risk Management Authority at 6371 Auburn 
Boulevard, Citrus Heights, CA 95621. 
 
During the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protection have had settlements or 
judgments that exceeded pooled or insured coverage. There have been no significant reductions in pooled 
or insured liability coverage from coverage in the prior year.  
 
NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
The City entered into a contract with the State of California on January 7, 1997, to establish and operate a 
Community Correctional Facility (CCF) program consistent with Chapter 7 of the California Penal Code 
and with Title 15 of the California Code of Regulations for the custody of and the provision of program 
services to parole violators and other State inmates who are the responsibility of the California 
Department of Corrections.  The State agrees that the monetary considerations of the Contract are not 
designed to have an adverse fiscal impact on the City.  The term of the contract was for 20 years, from 
January 7, 1997, unless otherwise terminated as provided in the contract. 

Total Assets 80,694,798$    

Total Liabilities 65,440,947$    
Total Retained Earnings 15,253,851      

Total Liabilities and Retained Earnings 80,694,798$    

Revenues for Fiscal Year 32,108,146$    
Expenses for Fiscal Year 32,739,704      

Change in Net Position (631,558)$       
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NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued) 
 
To provide services under the CCF Program Contract, the City entered into a triple net lease agreement on 
January 1, 1997, by and between Taft Public Financing Authority (the Authority) and the City to lease the 
CCF located at 330 Commerce Way in Taft, California and named the facility “Taft Community 
Correctional Facility.”  The term of the lease was to end on the earlier of January 1, 2017, or such time as 
all the bonds had been retired or provision of their payment had been provided for pursuant to the terms 
of the indenture.  The amount of the Base Rental rental was to be equal to the monthly debt service on the 
Bonds. 
  
The State of California agreed to continue to pay the rentals to the Authority or the Trustee, in the event 
the CCF Program Contract with the City was terminated.  The City agreed to pay the rentals solely with 
the monies received from the State of California, and under any circumstances, the City was not required 
to make the rental payments from any other sources of its funding including, but not limited to, the City’s 
general fund. 
  
The City received a notice purporting to terminate the contract from the State of California in May 
2011.  The facility closed on November 30, 2011, with inmates transferred to other Kern County 
facilities.  The City reopened the CCF facility on March 1, 2014.  The City and the State engaged in 
litigation regarding costs and expenses associated with the closure of the CCF facility.  Trial was set and 
postponed a number of times. The City and the State have agreed to a settlement of the litigation, with the 
State to pay the City approximately $168,000 for reimbursement of costs arising from the original closure 
of the CCF facility.  It is expected that the settlement will be finalized, the litigation dismissed, and 
payment of said monies made during the 2015/2016 fiscal year. 
 
The City has received State and Federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review by the 
grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under the terms of the 
grants, it is believed that any required reimbursements will not be material.  
 
From time to time, City is involved in various litigation matters incidental to operations, which the 
opinion of the City the ultimate outcome will not a material effect on operations.  
 
The City is a lessor in certain month – to – month leases. In addition the City leases properties under non-
cancelable operating leases. Minimum rents due under these leases are as follows:  
 

 
  

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, Amount
2016 36,000$            
2017 36,000              
2018 36,000              
2019 36,000              
2020 36,000              

Thereafter 306,000            

Total 486,000$           
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NOTE 13 – FUND EQUITY  
 
Fund Balance – Governmental Funds 

 
As of June 30, 2015, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows: 

  Nonspendable – amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or 
because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 

  Restricted – amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by 
creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments. 
 

  Committed – amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action 
of the governing board is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City.  
Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions 
approved by the governing board. 
 

  Assigned – amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but 
that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the City’s adopted policy, only the 
governing board or director may assign amounts for specific purposes. 
 

  Unassigned – all other spendable amounts. 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 
available, the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for 
which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers amounts to 
have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally, unassigned funds, as 
needed, unless the City Council has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. 
 

   

General

Revolving 
Loan Fund 

CDBG

Revolving 
Loan Fund 

Home TDA

WWTP 
Capital 

Projects

 Total Non-major 
Governmental 

Funds Total
Nonspendable:

Prepaid items  $       33,357  $             -   $             -   $             -   $             -    $                   -   33,357$      
Inventory                                      1,412 1,412           
Principal on advances      2,457,798 2,457,798     

Total Nonspendable      2,491,155                                                                                              1,412     2,492,567 
                                                                                                                                     

Restricted for:
Streets and roads           90,382                     350 90,732         
Public safety               190,216 190,216     
Community development         478,123        125,945               163,428 767,496     
Capital Projects - WWTP     3,748,856                82,702 3,831,558   

Total Restricted                             478,123        125,945          90,382     3,748,856               436,696     4,880,002 
                                                                                                                                     

Unassigned      2,967,419                                                                        (39,622) 2,927,797   
                                                                                                                                         

Total Fund Balances  $   5,458,574  $     478,123  $     125,945  $       90,382  $   3,748,856  $           398,486  $ 10,300,366 
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NOTE 14 – CONDUIT DEBT (NONOBLIGATORY DEBT) 
 
In January 1997, Taft Public Financing Authority (the Authority) issued the Lease Revenue Bonds 1997 
Series A (Community Correctional Facility Acquisition Project) totaling $21,740,000 to (a) acquire the 
Taft Community Correctional Facility located at 333 Commerce Way in Taft, California, (b) fund a 
reserve account, and (c) pay the issuance costs. The principal balance of the Revenue Bonds at June 30, 
2015 is $3,445,000.  
 
These bonds are special limited obligations of the Authority, payable solely from and secured by certain 
pledged revenue to be received from the State of California. The Bonds do not represent or constitute a 
debt of the Authority, the State, or the City of Taft within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory 
limitation or pledge of the faith and credit of the State or any political subdivision thereof, including the 
Authority, the City of Taft, or the State.  

 
NOTE 15 – AGREEMENTS 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP): Under agreements between the City of Taft, the Taft Heights 
Sanitation District, and the Ford City Sanitation District dated May 29, 1950, amended March 7, 1966, 
restated April 24, 1972, and restated August 21, 1991, covering the “Joint Sewage Project – 1972,” the 
City operates and maintains the Wastewater Treatment Plant serving the City and the two Sanitation 
Districts. The City includes the activities of the WWTP within its fund structure since the Agreement 
specifies that the City shall act on its own behalf and on behalf of the other Districts in operating and 
maintaining the WWTP. The City maintains the accounting records for the WWTP and has physical 
custody of its assets. The Agreement specifies that the City shall contribute 52 percent of the revenue 
required to operate and maintain the WWTP, with the other Districts providing a combined 48 percent of 
the operating revenue. Since the WWTP is not a separate legal entity it is not considered a component 
unit. 
 
NOTE 16 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 
 
The accompanying financial statements include adjustments that resulted in the restatements of beginning 
net position and fund balances due to the implementation of GASB Nos. 68 and 71. The following 
summarizes the effect of the prior period adjustments to beginning net position and fund balances as of 
July 1, 2014: 

 
  

Governmental Business-type
Reason for adjustments Activities Activities

PERS side fund 198,868$                -$                  
Net pension liabilities (4,087,858)              (2,919,244)         

Deferred outflow of resources - City's contribution 
   subsequent of the measurement 350,726                  282,652             
Understatement of capital assets, net 113,289                  
(Overstatement) of accounts receivable (35,194)              
Understatement of cash and investments 6,600                 
(Overstatement) of cash and investments (6,600)                    

(3,431,575)$             (2,665,186)$        
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NOTE 16 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (Continued) 
 

 
NOTE 17 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The purchase of a City-owned residence was approved by the City Council in a closed session during 
August 2006 and during the same fiscal year, was leased to the City Manager. Subsequent to the fiscal 
year end June 30, 2012, the City Manager resigned. Presently, the residence is leased to the non-related 
resident in an amount of $1,200 per month. The lease term is for six months with a six month auto 
renewal, if not canceled by either party, with the option to purchase the property at the appraised value at 
the time of purchase.  The lease was ended in January, 2016.  Currently, it is listed for sale. 
 
A City employee’s family member obtained a loan under a City grant program, which was approved by 
the City Council and the State of California Agency administering the grant program.   The loan was paid 
off in the amount of $156,513 on June 15, 2015. 
 
NOTE 18 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY 

 
On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill 1X 26 (“the Bill”) that 
provides for the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in the State of California.  This action impacted 
the reporting entity of the City of Taft that previously had reported a redevelopment agency within the 
reporting entity of the City as a blended component unit.  
 
The Bill provides that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the city or other unit of local 
government will agree to serve as the “successor agency” to hold the assets until they are distributed to 
other units of state and local government.  On January 17, 2012, the City Council elected to become the 
Successor Agency for the former redevelopment agency in accordance with the Bill as part of the City 
resolution number 12. 
 
  

Reason for adjustments  CCF  Federal WWTP Sewer  Refuse Transit 

Net pension liabilities (2,519,429)$             (32,894)$            (32,996)$          (69,895)$         (264,030)$   

Deferred outflow of resources - City's contribution 
   subsequent of the measurement 243,940                  3,185                 3,195               6,768             25,564        
Understatement of cash and investments 6,600          
(Overstatement) of accounts receivable (35,194)       

(2,275,489)$             (29,709)$            (29,801)$          (63,127)$         (267,060)$   

                                                                                                                  

Governmental Funds Governmental Funds Private-Purpose
Major Fund Nonmajor Funds Trust Fund

Asset
Forfeiture Post RDA

General Special Revenue Debt 
Reason for adjustments Fund Fund Retirement

(Overstatement) of cash and investments (106,688)$               -$                  -$                
Understatement of cash and investments 100,088             
Overstatement of accounts payable 5,184               

(106,688)$               100,088$           5,184$             

                                                                            

Proprietary Funds
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NOTE 18 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY (Continued) 
 
After enactment of the law, which occurred on June 28, 2011, redevelopment agencies in the State of 
California cannot enter into new projects, obligations or commitments.  Subject to the control of a newly 
established oversight board, remaining assets can only be used to pay enforceable obligations in existence 
as the date of the dissolution (including the completion of any unfinished projects that were subject to 
legally enforceable contractual commitments).  
 
In future fiscal years, successor agencies will only be allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to 
pay the estimated annual installment payments on enforceable obligations of former redevelopment 
agency until all enforceable obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been paid in full and all 
assets have been liquidated.  
 
The Bill directs the State Controller of the State of California review the propriety of any transfers of 
assets between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011.  If the 
public body that received such transfers is not contractually committed to a third party for the expenditure 
or encumbrance of those assets, the state Controller is required to order the available assets to be 
transferred to the public body designated as the successor agency by the Bill.  
 
In accordance with the timeline set forth in the Bill (as modified by the California Supreme Court on 
December 29, 2011) all redevelopment agencies in the State of California were dissolved and ceased to 
operate as a legal entity as of February 1, 2012.  
 
Prior to that date, the final seven months of activity of the redevelopment agency continued to be reported 
in the governmental funds of the City.  After the date of dissolution, the assets and activities of the 
dissolved redevelopment agency are reported in a fiduciary fund (private-purpose trust fund) in the 
financial statements of the City. 

 
Capital Asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows: 
 

 

Balance           Balance     
July 1, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2015

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 1,698,163$    -$             -$             1,698,163$    

Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,698,163                                      1,698,163      

Capital assets being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 407,116        407,116        

Total capital assets being depreciated 407,116                                        407,116        

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Structures and improvements (205,772)       (10,178)         (215,950)       

Total accumulated depreciation (205,772)       (10,178)                         (215,950)       

Total capital assets, being depreciated
net of accumulated depreciation 201,344        (10,178)                         191,166        

Total Governmental activities capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation 1,899,507$    (10,178)$       -$             1,889,329$    
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NOTE 18 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY (Continued) 
 
The following is a schedule of long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015: 
 

 
The maturity schedule of the bonds is as follows: 
 

 
NOTE 19 - OTHER MATTERS 
 
Pursuant to City Resolution No. 3392-12 dated January 11, 2012, which was in part the result of the 
California Supreme Court’s ruling in California Redevelopment Association v. Matosantos Case No. 
S194861 which upheld AB26x1 that dissolved all of the redevelopment agencies in California, the City 
determined that it is in the best interests to serve as Successor Agency.  

 
Further, pursuant to the above Resolution, the City had the Taft Housing Authority assume all rights, 
powers, assets, liabilities, duties and obligations associated with housing activities of the Taft Community 
Development Agency. City Resolution 3284, dated March 15, 2011 created a Housing Authority and 
designated City Council members as the Housing Authority Commissioners. Presently, any Taft Housing 
Authority expenditure actions need approval of the Successor Agency.  

Balance Balance Due in
July 1, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2015 One Year

1998 Revenue Refunding Bonds 3,395,000$    -$             (165,000)$     3,230,000$    175,000$       

Total governmental activities 3,395,000$    -$                 (165,000)$     3,230,000$    175,000$       

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 175,000$       187,340$       362,340$       
2017 180,000        177,190        357,190        
2018 195,000        166,750        361,750        
2019 205,000        155,440        360,440        
2020 220,000        143,550        363,550        

2021-2025 1,285,000      512,430        1,797,430      
2026-2028 970,000        114,550        1,084,550      

Total 3,230,000$    1,457,250$    4,687,250$    
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Budgetary comparison schedules are presented as Required Supplementary Information for the General 
Fund and TDA Special Revenue Fund as provided for by GASB Statement No. 34. The budgetary 
comparison schedules for the remaining major funds are presented to aid in additional analysis and is not 
a required part of the basic financial statements or Required Supplementary Information. 
 
Budgets were not adopted for the Revolving Loan Fund CDBG and Revolving Loan Fund Home.  
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CITY OF TAFT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Amounts 

 Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

REVENUES
Property taxes 1,415,177$        1,415,177$        1,372,304$        (42,873)$           
Sales taxes 1,650,336          1,650,336          1,475,787          (174,549)           
Other taxes 414,260             414,260             526,768             112,508             
Licenses and permits, and fees 265,204             265,204             312,364             47,160              
Fines and forfeitures 1,540                1,540                8,182                6,642                
Use of money and property 106,150             106,150             198,178             92,028              
Intergovernmental 188,718             188,718             997,989             809,271             
Current services charges 2,553,049          2,553,049          2,318,050          (234,999)           
Other 28,975              28,975              613,749             584,774             

Total revenues 6,623,409          6,623,409          7,823,371          1,199,962          

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 1,313,380          1,313,380          1,419,774          (106,394)           

Public safety 3,680,020          3,680,020          3,498,974          181,046             

Public works 1,122,686          1,122,686          1,160,631          (37,945)             

Community development 502,961             502,961             556,320             (53,359)             

Capital outlay 253,700             253,700             1,145,500          (891,800)           

Total expenditures 6,872,747          6,872,747          7,781,199          (908,452)           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (249,338)           (249,338)           42,172              291,510             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 249,338             249,338             466,120             216,782             

Total other financing sources (uses) 249,338             249,338             466,120             216,782             

Net change in fund balance                                           508,292             508,292             

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 5,056,970          5,056,970          5,056,970                               
Prior period adjustment (106,688)           (106,688)           
Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year, restated 5,056,970          5,056,970          4,950,282          (106,688)           

Fund balance, end of fiscal year 5,056,970$       5,056,970$       5,458,574$        401,604$          
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CITY OF TAFT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TDA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

 Original/Final 
Budget 

 Actual 
Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

REVENUES
Intergovernmental 1,000$             368,521$         367,521$         

Total revenues 1,000               368,521           367,521           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (1,000)              (368,521)          (367,521)          

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,000)              (368,521)          (367,521)          

Net change in fund balance                                                             

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 90,382             90,382                                 

Fund balance, end of the fiscal year 90,382$           90,382$           -$                
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Schedule of Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

CITY OF TAFT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2015

Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Safety and Miscellaneous Plan

Safety Plan Miscellaneous Plan

2015 
1

2015 
1

Plan's proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 0.03910% 0.04625%

Plan's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) $2,433,122 $2,877,785

Covered employee payroll 
2

$1,138,018 $1,898,242

Plan's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) as
a percentage of its covered employee payroll 213.80% 151.60%

Plan's fiduciary net position $8,924,342 $14,079,035

Plan's proportionate share of the Fiduciary Net Pension Liability (Asset) as 78.58% 83.03%
a percentage of the Plan's Total Pension Liability

1 
Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.

2
Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings proivded by the 

 employer.  However, GASB 68 defines covered-employee payroll as the total of employees that 
 are provided pensions through the pension plan.  Accordingly, if pensionable earnings are different
 than total earnings for covered-employees, the employer should display in the disclosure footnotes the 
 payroll based on total earnings for the covered group and recalculate the required payroll-related ratios.

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown.

61



Schedule of Contributions 1

CITY OF TAFT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2015

Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Safety Plan

Safety Plan

Fiscal Year 2014-15

Actuarially Determined Contribution
2

488,278$                    

Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution
2

(488,278)                     
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                           

Covered Employee Payroll
3,4

1,172,159$                  

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll
3

41.66%

1 
Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.

2
Employers are assumed to make contributions equal to the actuarially determined contributions. 

However, some employers may choose to make additional contributions towards their unfunded 
liability.  Employer contributions for such plans exceed the actuarially determined contributions.
CalPERS has determined that employer obligations referred to as "side funds" do not conform
to the circumstances described in paragraph 120 of GASB 68, therefore are not considered
separately finaced specific liabilitis.
3
Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings provided by the

employer.  However, GASB 68 defines covered-employee payroll as the total payroll of employees
that are provided pensions through the pension plan.  Accordingly, if pensionable earnings are
different than total earnings for covered-employees, the employer should display in the disclosure
footnotes the payroll based on total earnings for the covered group and recalculate the required 
payroll-related ratios.
4
Payroll from prior year ($1,138,018) was assumed to increase by the 3.00 percent payroll growth 

assumption.

Notes to Schedule:

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for
Fiscal Year 2013-14 were from the June 30, 2011 public agency valuations.

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method/Period For detail, see June 30, 2011 Funding Valuation Report
Asset Valuation Method Actuarial Value of Assets. For details, see June 30, 2011

Funding Valuation Report.
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Payroll Growth 3.00%
Investment Rate of Return 7.50% Net of Pension Plan Investment and Administrative

Expenses; includes Inflation.
Retirement Age The probabilities of Retirement are based on the 2010 CalPERS

Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2007.
Mortality The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2010 CalPERS

Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2007.  Pre-
retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates included 5 years of
projected mortality improvement using Scale AA published by the
Society of Actuaries.

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown.
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Schedule of Contributions 1

CITY OF TAFT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2015

Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years*
Miscellaneous Plan

Miscellaneous Plan

Fiscal Year 2014-15

Actuarially Determined Contribution
2

733,476$                          

Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution
2

(733,476)                           
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                                 

Covered Employee Payroll
3,4

1,955,189$                       

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll
3

37.51%

1 
Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.

3
Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings provided by the

employer.  However, GASB 68 defines covered-employee payroll as the total payroll of employees
that are provided pensions through the pension plan.  Accordingly, if pensionable earnings are
different than total earnings for covered-employees, the employer should display in the disclosure
footnotes the payroll based on total earnings for the covered group and recalculate the required 
payroll-related ratios.
3
Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings provided by the

employer.  However, GASB 68 defines covered-employee payroll as the total payroll of employees
that are provided pensions through the pension plan.  Accordingly, if pensionable earnings are
different than total earnings for covered-employees, the employer should display in the disclosure
footnotes the payroll based on total earnings for the covered group and recalculate the required 
payroll-related ratios.
4
Payroll from prior year ($1,898,242) was assumed to increase by the 3.00 percent payroll growth 

assumption.

Notes to Schedule:

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for
Fiscal Year 2013-14 were from the June 30, 2011 public agency valuations.

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method/Period For detail, see June 30, 2011 Funding Valuation Report
Asset Valuation Method Actuarial Value of Assets. For details, see June 30, 2011

Funding Valuation Report.
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Payroll Growth 3.00%
Investment Rate of Return 7.50% Net of Pension Plan Investment and Administrative

Expenses; includes Inflation.
Retirement Age The probabilities of Retirement are based on the 2010 CalPERS

Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2007.
Mortality The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2010 CalPERS

Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2007.  Pre-
retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates included 5 years of
projected mortality improvement using Scale AA published by the
Society of Actuaries.

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown.
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CITY OF TAFT 
MAJOR CAPTIAL PROJECT FUND 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 

WWTP Capital Projects Fund 
 

The WWTP Capital Projects Fund is used to account for capital asset acquisition and construction of the 
wastewater treatment plant.  



CITY OF TAFT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WWTP CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Final Budget 
 Actual 

Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

REVENUES
Use of money and property 30,164$           29,237$           (927)$               

Total revenues 30,164             29,237             (927)                 

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 123,864           123,864           

Total Expenditures 123,864                               123,864           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over Expenditures (93,700)            29,237             122,937           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 131,200           131,200                               
Transfers out (37,500)            37,500             

Total other financing sources (uses) 93,700             131,200           37,500             

Net change in fund balance                     160,437           160,437           

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 3,588,419        3,588,419                            

Fund balance, end of the fiscal year 3,588,419$      3,748,856$      160,437$        

66



 

67 

CITY OF TAFT 
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 
Traffic Safety 
 
This Fund was established to receive the City’s share of traffic fines and reimburse the General Fund for 
police activities related to traffic safety and traffic control devices.  
 
Gas Tax  
 
This fund was established to receive a share of the revenues derived from the State taxes on gasoline.  
 
Inmate Welfare Trust 
 
The inmate welfare trust fund account is established and maintained pursuant to Penal Code Sections 
5005, 5006.1, 5007, and 5008 and the Business Administration Manual, Chapter 4200. All entries to the 
inmate welfare trust fund are supported by source documentation.  
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) 
 
This fund is used to account for special projects related to the City’s share of the wastewater treatment 
plant.  
 
Cal Home Revolving Loan 
 
This fund was established to account for all CalHome grant received by the City. 
 
Tarp Revolving Loan  
 
This fund was established to account for funds received from the State of California CDBG program 
whose intent is to provide financing to new and existing businesses for a healthy economic environment. 
 
Asset Forfeiture 
 
This fund was established to receive funds that are seized from narcotics dealers or following the sale of 
dealer assets.  
 
Landscape Assessment District 
 
This fund was established in connection with a single-family housing development project (Tract No. 
5574) and will be used to record expenditures and revenues relative to formation and operation of a 
Landscape Maintenance District in that tract.  
 
Crime Prevention 
 
This fund was established to account for receipts from the State COPS grant program and related 
expenditures.  
 

 
 
 
 



CITY OF TAFT
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2015

 Traffic Safety  Gas Tax 
Inmate Welfare 

Trust
WWTP Special 

Revenue
ASSETS

Cash and investments -$                 330$                58,746$           75,514$           
Receivables:                                                                                 

Accounts 477                                                          15,135             
Interest                     20                                                            
Notes                                                                                 

Inventory                                         1,412                                   

Total assets 477$                350$                60,158$           90,649$           

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$                 -$                 -$                 6,037$             
Accrued payroll                                         1,100               1,910               
Due to other funds                                         21,866                                 

Total liabilities                                         22,966             7,947               

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred revenue 

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable                                         1,412                                   
Restricted 477                  350                  35,780             82,702             
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficits) 477                  350                  37,192             82,702             

Total liabilities, deferred inflow 
of resources, and fund balances 477$                350$                60,158$           90,649$           

                                                                                

Special Revenue Funds
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Cal Homes 
Revolving Loan 

Fund
TARP 

Revolving Loan 
 Asset 

Forfeiture 

 Landscape 
Assessment 

District 
Crime 

Prevention 

 Total Non-
Major 

Governmental 
Funds 

-$                 163,409$         122,820$         -$                 32,577$           453,396$          
                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                    15,612              
                    19                    14                                        3                      56                     

292,303           163,448                                                                       455,751            
                                                                                                    1,412                

                     
292,303$         326,876$         122,834$         -$                 32,580$           926,227            

                     
                     
                     
                     

-$                 -$                 33$                  4,085$             -$                 10,155              
                                                            150                  1,422               4,582                
                                                            35,387                                 57,253              

                     
                                        33                    39,622             1,422               71,990              

                     
                     

292,303           163,448           455,751            
                     
                     

                                                                                                    1,412                
                    163,428           122,801           31,158             436,696            

(39,622)            (39,622)             
                     

                    163,428           122,801           (39,622)            31,158             398,486            
                     
                     

292,303$         326,876$         122,834$         -$                     32,580$           926,227$          

                                                                                                    

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF TAFT
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

  Traffic Safety  Gas Tax 
Inmate Welfare 

Trust
WWTP Special 

Revenue
REVENUES

Fines and forfeitures 5,720$             -$                 -$                 -$                 
Use of money and property                     1,128               31                    722                  
Intergovernmental                     224,492                               752,779           
Current services charges                                         49,839             76,805             
Other                                         7,100               15,168             

Total revenues 5,720               225,620           56,970             845,474           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government                                                             879,591           
Public safety                                                                                 
Public works                                                                                 
Health and welfare                                         6,309                                   

Capital outlay                                                             234,694           

Total expenditures                                         6,309               1,114,285        

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures 5,720               225,620           50,661             (268,811)          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (6,068)              (244,807)                              (158,471)          

Total other financing sources (uses) (6,068)              (244,807)                              (158,471)          

Net changes in fund balances (348)                 (19,187)            50,661             (427,282)          

Fund balances (deficits), beginning of fiscal year 825                  19,537             (13,469)            509,984           
Prior period adjustments                                                                                 
Fund balances (deficits), beginning of fiscal year, restated 825                  19,537             (13,469)            509,984           

Fund balances (deficits), end of fiscal year 477$                350$                37,192$           82,702$           

Special Revenue Funds
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Cal Homes 
Revolving Loan 

Fund
TARP 

Revolving Loan  Asset Forfeiture 

 Landscape 
Assessment 

District 
Crime 

Prevention 

Total Non-
Major 

Governmental 
Funds 

-$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 5,720$              
                    934                  902                                      107                  3,824                
                    59,910                                                     106,230           1,143,411         
                                                            8,162                                   134,806            
                                                                                                    22,268              

                    60,844             902                  8,162               106,337           1,310,029         

                                                                                                    879,591            
                                        35,131                                 80,704             115,835            
                                                            19,011                                 19,011              
                                                                                                    6,309                
                                                                                                    234,694            

                                        35,131             19,011             80,704             1,255,440         
                     
                     

                    60,844             (34,229)            (10,849)            25,633             54,589              
                     
                     

                                                                                                    (409,346)           
                     

                                                                                                    (409,346)           
                     

                    60,844             (34,229)            (10,849)            25,633             (354,757)           
                     

                    102,584           56,942             (28,773)            5,525               653,155            
                                        100,088                                                   100,088            
                    102,584           157,030           (28,773)            5,525               753,243            

                     
-$                 163,428$         122,801$         (39,622)$          31,158$           398,486$          

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF TAFT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TRAFFIC SAFETY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Final Budget Actual Amounts 

 Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

REVENUES
Fines and forfeitures 8,500$              5,720$              (2,780)$             

Total revenues 8,500                5,720                (2,780)               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (8,500)               (6,068)               2,432                

Total other financing sources (uses) (8,500)               (6,068)               2,432                

Net change in fund balance                      (348)                  (348)                  

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 825                   825                                        

Fund balance, end of fiscal year 825$                477$                 (348)$               
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CITY OF TAFT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GAS TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Final Budget Actual Amounts 

 Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

REVENUES
Use of money and property 800$                 1,128$              328$                 
Intergovernmental 239,038             224,492             (14,546)             

Total revenues 239,838             225,620             (14,218)             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (239,838)           (244,807)           (4,969)               

Total other financing sources (uses) (239,838)           (244,807)           (4,969)               

Net change in fund balance                      (19,187)             (19,187)             

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 19,537              19,537                                   

Fund balance, end of fiscal year 19,537$            350$                 (19,187)$          
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CITY OF TAFT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
INMATE WELFARE TRUST SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Final Budget Actual Amounts 

 Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

REVENUES
Use of money and property -$                  31$                   31$                   
Current services charges 46,446              49,839              3,393                
Other 1,076                7,100                6,024                

Total revenues 47,522              56,970              9,448                

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Health and welfare 46,446              6,309                40,137              

Total expenditures 46,446              6,309                40,137              

Net change in fund balance 1,076                50,661              49,585              

Fund balance (deficit), beginning of fiscal year (13,469)             (13,469)                                  

Fund balance (deficit), end of fiscal year (12,393)$          37,192$             49,585$            
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CITY OF TAFT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WWTP SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Final Budget Actual Amounts 

 Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

REVENUES
Use of money and property -$                  722$                 722$                 
Intergovernmental 823,727             752,779             (70,948)             
Current services charges 70,000              76,805              6,805                
Other 15,168              15,168              

Total revenues 893,727             845,474             (48,253)             

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 747,527             879,591             (132,064)           
Capital outlay 52,500              234,694             (182,194)           

Total expenditures 800,027             1,114,285          (314,258)           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 93,700              (268,811)           (362,511)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 37,500                                   (37,500)             
Transfers out (131,200)           (158,471)           (27,271)             

Total other financing sources (uses) (93,700)             (158,471)           (64,771)             

Net change in fund balance                      (427,282)           (427,282)           

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 509,984             509,984                                  

Fund balance, end of fiscal year 509,984$          82,702$             (427,282)$        
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CITY OF TAFT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ASSET FORFEITURE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Final Budget Actual Amounts 

 Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

REVENUES
Fines and forfeitures 2,000$              -$                  (2,000)$             
Use of money and property 300                   902                   602                   

Total revenues 2,300                902                   (1,398)               

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety 2,300                35,131              (32,831)             

Total expenditures 2,300                35,131              (32,831)             

Net change in fund balance                      (34,229)             (34,229)             

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 56,942              56,942                                   
Prior period adjustment 100,088             100,088             
Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year, restated 56,942              157,030             100,088             

Fund balance, end of fiscal year 56,942$            122,801$           65,859$            
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CITY OF TAFT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LANDSCAPE ASSESSMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Final Budget Actual Amounts 

 Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

REVENUES
Current services charges 8,171$              8,162$              (9)$                    

Total revenues 8,171                8,162                (9)                      

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public works 18,321              19,011              (690)                  

Total expenditures 18,321              19,011              (690)                  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (10,150)             (10,849)             (699)                  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 10,150              (10,150)             

Total other financing sources (uses) 10,150                                   (10,150)             

Net change in fund balance                      (10,849)             (10,849)             

Fund balance (deficit), beginning of fiscal year (28,773)             (28,773)                                  

Fund balance (deficit), end of fiscal year (28,773)$          (39,622)$           (10,849)$          
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CITY OF TAFT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CRIME PREVENTION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Final Budget Actual Amounts 

 Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

REVENUES
Use of money and property 50$                   107$                 57$                   
Intergovernmental 100,000             106,230             6,230                

Total revenues 100,050             106,337             6,287                

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety 135,859             80,704              55,155              

Total expenditures 135,859             80,704              55,155              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (35,809)             25,633              61,442              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 35,809              (35,809)             

Total other financing sources (uses) 35,809                                   (35,809)             

Net change in fund balance                      25,633              25,633              

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 5,525                5,525                                     

Fund balance, end of fiscal year 5,525$             31,158$             25,633$            
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CITY OF TAFT 
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS AND AGENCY FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 

Private-Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for assets and liabilities held by the City of Taft in a 
trustee capacity.  

 
Capital Projects Fund 

 
This fund is used to account for capital assets and other activities of the former redevelopment agency.  
 

Post RDA Debt Retirement 
 
This fund is used to account for administration and debt retirement activities related to the former 
redevelopment agency.  

 
 

AGENCY FUNDS DESCRIPTION 
 
Trust and agency funds were established to control money held by the City as agent or trustee. The 
collections reflected in these funds are not revenues to the City and disbursements do not represent 
expenditures of the City. Accordingly, these funds do not employ the budgetary accounting procedures 
used for the other funds.  
 

Inmate Trust Account  
 

The Inmate Trust Account maintains those accounting records necessary to provide for the recording of 
all transactions affecting the inmate trust accounts. It also provides accurate and current information 
relative to each individual inmate trust account.  
 

1997-A Lease Revenue Bond 
 

This fund is used to account for resources held related to nonobligatory conduit debt. The City acts as an 
agent by collecting payments and forwarding them to a trustee on behalf of the bondholders.  
 
  



CITY OF TAFT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2015

Capital Projects 
Fund

Post RDA Debt 
Retirement  Total 

ASSETS
Cash and investments -$                 95,656$            95,656$             
Cash and investment with fiscal agents                     465,448            465,448             
Interest receivable                     120                  120                    
Capital assets - nondepreciable 1,698,163                             1,698,163          
Capital assets - being depreciated 407,116                                407,116             
Capital assets - accumulated depreciation (215,950)                              (215,950)            

Total assets 1,889,329         561,224            2,450,553          

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable                     597                  597                    
Accrued payroll                     625                  625                    
Accrued interest payable                     93,152              93,152               
Compensated absences                     15,393              15,393               
Advance due to City of Taft                     2,535,490         2,535,490          
Bonds payable                     3,230,000         3,230,000          

Total liabilities                     5,875,257         5,875,257          

NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

Restricted for debt service 372,296            372,296             
Unrestricted 1,889,329         (5,686,329)       (3,797,000)         

       Total Net Position (Deficit) 1,889,329$      (5,314,033)$    (3,424,704)$       

                                                              

80



CITY OF TAFT
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Capital Projects 
Fund

Post RDA Debt 
Retirement Total 

Additions: 
 Investment revenue -$                   129,582$            129,582$            

Taxes and assessments                        272,269              272,269              

Total additions                        401,851              401,851              

Deductions: 
Community development                        103,162              103,162              
Interest expense                        197,335              197,335              
Depreciation 10,178                                       10,178                

Total deductions 10,178                              300,497 310,675              

Change in net position (10,178)              101,354              91,176                

Net Position (Deficit) - July 1, 2014 1,899,507           (5,420,571)         (3,521,064)         
Prior Period Adjustment 5,184                  5,184                  
Net Position (Deficit) - July 1, 2014, Restated 1,899,507           (5,415,387)         (3,515,880)         

Net Position (Deficit) - June 30, 2015 1,889,329$        (5,314,033)$       $       (3,424,704)
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CITY OF TAFT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

Inmate Trust 
Fund 

1997-A Lease 
Revenue Bond  Total 

ASSETS
Cash and investments 65,149$             559$                  65,708$             
Cash and investment with fiscal agents                       3,245,924          3,245,924          

Total assets 65,149$            3,246,483$       3,311,632$        

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 13,656$             -$                   13,656$             
Deposits payable                       159,000             159,000             
Due to inmates 51,493                                     51,493               
Due to bondholders                       3,087,483          3,087,483          

Total liabilities 65,149$            3,246,483$       3,311,632$        
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CITY OF TAFT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

July 1, 2014 
Balance Additions Reductions 

 June 30, 2015 
Balance 

ASSETS
Cash and investments 61,811$            121,626$          (118,288)$            65,149$               

Total assets 61,811$           121,626$         (118,288)$            65,149$              

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,873$              65,898$            (54,115)$              13,656$               
Due to inmates 59,938              55,728              (64,173)                51,493                 

Total liabilities 61,811$           121,626$         (118,288)$            65,149$              

July 1, 2014 
Balance Additions Reductions 

 June 30, 2015 
Balance 

ASSETS
Cash and investments $                559 -$                $                       -    $                    559 
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 3,250,894         3,716,755         (3,721,725)           3,245,924            

Total assets 3,251,453$      3,716,755$      (3,721,725)$        3,246,483$         

LIABILITIES
Deposits payable 159,000$          -$                 -$                     159,000$             
Due to bondholders 3,092,453         3,716,755         (3,721,725)           3,087,483            

Total liabilities 3,251,453$      3,716,755$      (3,721,725)$        3,246,483$         

July 1, 2014 
Balance Additions Reductions 

 June 30, 2015 
Balance 

ASSETS
Cash and investments 62,370$            121,626$          (118,288)$            65,708$               
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 3,250,894         3,716,755         (3,721,725)           3,245,924            

Total assets 3,313,264$      3,838,381$      (3,840,013)$        3,311,632$         

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,873$              65,898$            (54,115)$              13,656$               
Due to bondholders 3,092,453         3,716,755         (3,721,725)           3,087,483            
Due to inmates 59,938              55,728              (64,173)                51,493                 
Deposits payable 159,000                                                         159,000               

Total liabilities 3,313,264$      3,838,381$      (3,840,013)$        3,311,632$         

Total

Inmate Trust Fund

1997-A Lease Revenue Bond

83
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members  
   of the City Council of the City of Taft  
Taft, California 

 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Taft (City), California, as 
of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a 
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal 
control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
significant deficiencies.   

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. During our 
audit, we noted two significant deficiencies (Findings 2015-01 and 2015-02).   

During our audit, we noted six matters involving internal control presented for your consideration, which are 
designed to assist the City to make improvements and operational efficiencies (Findings 2015-03 through 2015-
05). 

The City’s written response to the finding is identified in our audit and described in the current year 
recommendation section. We did not audit the City’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 
In addition, we would be pleased to discuss these recommendations in further detail at your convenience, to 
perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing these recommendations. 

 



 

2 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management of the City of Taft, the 
members of the City Council, and others within the City, and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
 
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP 
Culver City, California 
March 31, 2016 
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
   of the City of Taft  
Taft, California 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Taft (City), California for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated March 31, 2016. Professional standards require that we 
provide you with the information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards in the 
United States of America and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133, as well as 
certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information 
in our letter to you dated July 13, 2015. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 of the notes to the basic financial statements. As 
discussed in Note 1 of the notes to the basic financial statements, effective July 1, 2014, the City adopted the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions and Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date.  Both Statements had an effect on the financial statements (see Note 1Q of the notes to the basic financial 
statements).   We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the fiscal year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements 
in the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most 
sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:  
 

Management’s estimates included the funding progress and net pension liability of CalPERS, the 
estimated historical cost and useful lives of capital assets, and the allowance for doubtful accounts 
receivable.  These estimates are based on CalPERS’ actuarial estimates, historical data and industry 
guidelines for capital assets, and historical data for allowance for doubtful accounts receivable.  We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates above in determining that they 
are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.   

 



4 
 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  Management has 
corrected all such misstatements. There were no material misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures. 
  
Disagreements with Management 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to 
the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during 
the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated March 31, 2016. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may 
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our 
retention. 
 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the budgetary comparison information, the schedules of the plan’s 
proportionate share of net pension liability, and the schedule of pension contributions, which are required 
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on WWTP Capital Projects budgetary comparison schedule, combining and individual 
non-major governmental and fiduciary fund financial statements, which accompany the financial statements but 
are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and 
evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not 
changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the 
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
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Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council of the City and management of the City of Taft 
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP 
Culver City, California 
March 31, 2016 
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CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Significant Deficiencies 
 
2015-01 Bank reconciliations were not completed in a timely manner:  

During our audit, it was noted that bank reconciliations were not being prepared in a timely manner.   
 
Effect:  
Proper bank reconciliations prepared in a timely manner help safeguard cash by detecting errors on the 
part of the bank or City.  In addition, bank reconciliations help create stronger internal controls and 
establish accountability for cash.  Delays in completing bank reconciliations increase the risk that errors 
and irregularities may occur and go undetected, which can lead to a misappropriation of funds 

 
 Recommendation:  

We recommend the City prepare and finalize bank reconciliations in a timely manner, within 30 days of 
the bank statement date.   
 
Management’s Response: 
The City will complete the bank reconciliations in a timely manner.   

 
2015-02 TDA Claims were not submitted in a timely manner:  

During our audit, it was noted that the City has not yet submitted its TDA claims for the 2014/15 fiscal 
year.   
 
Effect:  
By not submitting the claims, the City has not received the money from the County Treasury, causing a 
negative fund balance in the Transit fund and having a negative effect on investment earnings.   

 
 Recommendation:  

We recommend the City file its claims for the 2014/15 fiscal year and continue to file claims in a timely 
manner.  
 
Management’s Response: 
The City plans on having all TDA claims current and will continue to prepare claims timely.   
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CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
Other Matters 
 
2015-03 Lack of official policy on fraud:  

During our audit, it was noted that the City does not have an official fraud policy in place.     
 
Effect:  
Without an official fraud policy, effective and efficient fraud prevention cannot take place.   

 
 Recommendation:  

We recommend the City create an official fraud policy and have it approved by the City Council.   
 
Management’s Response: 
City will create a fraud policy and have it approved by city council.   

 
2015-04 Deficiencies in internal controls over credit cards:  

A) The City was missing multiple receipts for purchases on Amazon.com. 
B) The City had receipts for City Council meals that were not itemized. 
C) The Finance Director approves her own credit card statement. 
 
Effect: 
When there is a lack of segregation of duties, there is a greater chance for a misappropriation of funds to 
occur and to go undetected. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the City implement procedures for another responsible person to approve the 
purchases prior to charging.  All Management credit cards purchases should be approved by the Finance 
Director.  In addition, the Finance Director credit card purchases should be approved by City Manager. 
 
Management’s Response: 
City revised the credit card policy on October 6, 2015 per the auditor’s recommendation in prior year’s 
findings.   

 
2015-05 Lack of formal accounting manual in place:  

During our audit, it was noted that the City does not have a formal accounting manual.     
 
Effect:  
Without a formal accounting manual, there are no set guidelines for employees to follow, which increases 
the risk of material misstatements.   

 
 Recommendation:  

We recommend the City create a formal accounting manual.   
 
Management’s Response: 
The finance department will work at creating a formal accounting manual.   

 
  

  



8 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Other Matters 
 
2014-01 Management Approves Their Own Credit Card Purchases  

During our test of credit card transaction, although all purchases were appropriate, we noted that two out 
of eight employee credit cards examined did not have another responsible person approving the 
purchases.  
 
Effect: 
When there is a lack of segregation of duties, there is a greater chance for a misappropriation of funds to 
occur and to go undetected. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the City implement procedures for another responsible person to approve the 
purchases prior to charging.  All Management credit cards purchases should be approved by Finance 
Director and Finance Director credit card purchases should be approved by City Manager. 

 
Current Status: 
Implemented – See Finding 2015-04 - New Credit Card policy implemented October 2015.   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council  
     of the City of Taft  
Taft, California 
 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Taft (City), 
California, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
March 31, 2016.    
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies, listed 
as 2015-01 and 2015-02.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.   
 
We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the City of Taft in a separate letter dated 
March 31, 2016.    
 
City’s Responses to Findings  
 
The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. The City’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.  
 
Purpose of the Report  
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

 
 
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP 
Culver City, California 
March 31, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR  

EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council  
     of the City of Taft 
Taft, California 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 

We have audited the City of Taft’s (City) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.  
The City’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal programs based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations.  Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 

In our opinion, the City of Taft complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2015. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit 
of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
  
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified.   
 
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Taft as of and for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial 
statements.  We issued our report thereon dated March 31, 2016, which contained unmodified opinions on the 
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility 
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the basic financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken 
as a whole. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP 
Culver City, California 
March 31, 2016
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Agency or 

Federal Grantor/ Pass - Through Grantor Federal Pass-Through

CFDA Program Federal

Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Transportation:

   Passed through the State of California Department of Transportation:

Formula Grants for Rural Areas Section 5311 20.509 64BO15-00284 29,381$              

29,381                

  Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) - Highway Planning

          and Construction

   Passed through the State of California Department of Transportation:

Highway Planning and Construction - Hillard Street from A St. to Rails to Trails 20.205 RPSTPLE - 5193 (033) 249,000              *

Highway Planning and Construction - Center St. - 4th St. to 6th St. 20.205 STPL - 5193 (035) 12,405                *

Highway Planning and Construction - Safe Routes to Schools 20.205 SRTSLNI - 5193 (034) 411,123              *

Highway Planning and Construction - Former Sunset Corridor - from 2nd St. to SR 119 20.205 RPSTPLE - 5193 (036) 87,000                *

759,528              

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 788,909              

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:

   Passed through programs from the State of California Department of Housing and Community Development

Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME) 14.239 N/A 39,169                

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 14.228 N/A 14,343                

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 53,512                

     TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 842,421$            

 
 
* - Denotes major program 
N/A – Not applicable 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
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NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government, City of Taft (City), and (b) 
component unit which includes an organization for which the primary government is financially 
accountable, and other organizations for which the primary government is not accountable, but for which 
the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion 
would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The component 
unit of the City is: 
 

 Wastewater Treatment Plant of the City of Taft/Ford City-Taft Heights Sanitation District 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT POLICIES  
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
Funds received under various grant programs have been recorded within the general fund, special revenue 
funds, and capital project funds of the City. The City utilizes the modified accrual method of accounting, 
whereby grant revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available, and expenditures are 
recognized when the related fund liability is incurred.  
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
 
The accompanying schedule presents the activity of all federal financial assistance programs of the City. 
Federal financial assistance received directly from federal agencies as well as federal financial assistance 
passed through the State of California are also included in the schedule.  
 
The schedule was prepared from only the accounts of various grant programs and, therefore, does not 
present the financial position or results of the City’s operations.  
 
NOTE 3 – PROGRAM DESCRIPTIONS 
 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
  
 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program was authorized under Title I of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. The primary objective of the CDBG Program 
is the development of viable urban communities, including adequate housing, a suitable living 
environment, and expansion of economic opportunities principally for persons of low to moderate 
income. Under this program, the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
distributes funds based upon approved applications to eligible local governmental units for the 
purpose of community improvement and betterment. The City uses CDBG funds to finance a 
comprehensive home improvement program that assists low and moderate income residents 
through low interest subsidies and deferred loans. 

 
 Home Investment Partnerships 

The Home Investment Partnerships Program was authorized under Title II of the National 
Affordable Housing Act of 1990.  The primary objective of the Home Investment Partnerships 
Program is to expand the supply of affordable housing, particularly rental housing, for low and 
very low income Americans; to strengthen the abilities of State and local governments to design 
and implement strategies for achieving adequate supplies of decent, affordable housing; and to 
extend and strengthen partnerships among all levels of government and the private sector, 
including for-profit and nonprofit organizations, in the production and operation of affordable 
housing. 
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NOTE 3 – PROGRAM DESCRIPTIONS (Continued) 
 
U.S. Department of Transportation 
 

Formula Grants for Rural Areas 
 
The objective of this grant is to improve, initiate, or continue public transportation service in 
nonurbanized areas (rural areas and small cities under 50,000 in population) and to provide 
technical assistance for rural transportation providers. The Section 5311 program supports both the 
maintenance of existing public transportation services and the expansion of those services through 
the following program goals: enhancing access in rural areas to health care, shopping, education, 
employment, public services, and recreation; assisting in the maintenance, development, 
improvement, and use of public transportation systems in rural areas; encouraging and facilitating 
the most efficient use of all transportation funds used to provide passenger transportation in rural 
areas through the coordination of programs and services; providing financial assistance to help 
carry out national goals related to mobility for all, including seniors, individuals with disabilities, 
and low-income individuals; increasing availability of transportation options through investments 
in intercity bus services; assisting in the development and support of intercity bus transportation; 
encouraging mobility management, employment-related transportation alternatives, joint 
development practices, and transit-oriented development; and providing for the participation of 
private transportation providers in rural public transportation. 
 
Highway Planning and Construction 
 
This grant is awarded to assist State transportation agencies in the planning and development of an 
integrated, interconnected transportation system important to interstate commerce and travel by 
constructing and rehabilitating the National Highway System (NHS); and for transportation 
improvements to most other public roads; to provide aid for the repair of Federal-aid highways 
following disasters; to foster safe highway design; to replace or rehabilitate deficient or obsolete 
bridges; and to provide for other special purposes. Federal-aid highway funds are generally 
apportioned by statutory formulas to the States. They are generally restricted to roads open to the 
public and not functionally classified as rural minor collectors or local roads. Exceptions to this 
highway functional classification restriction include: planning and research activities, bridges, 
bicycle and pedestrian paths, and safety improvements that may be on any public road, non-
motorized transportation, the FLTP, and public transportation improvement. For highway projects, 
funds may be used for environmental studies, engineering and design services, right-of-way 
acquisition and relocation assistance, and construction for capital improvement projects classified 
as new construction, reconstruction, restoration, rehabilitation, and resurfacing, or for functional, 
geometric, or safety reasons. Funds may also be used for planning; research, development, and 
technology transfer; intelligent transportation systems projects; roadside beautification; wetland 
and natural habitat mitigation; traffic management and control improvements; improvements 
necessary to accommodate other transportation modes; development and establishment of 
transportation management systems; billboard removal; construction of bicycle facilities and 
pedestrian walkways; fringe and corridor parking; car pool and van pool projects; transportation 
alternatives and enhancements such as scenic and historic highway improvements; and 
recreational trails. Funds generally cannot be used for routine highway operational activities. 
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Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results 
 
 

Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued      Unmodified 

 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weakness(es) identified?          Yes   X  No 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered  
   to be material weaknesses?            X     Yes     None reported 
 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?                    Yes   X  No 
 

Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major programs: 
 Material weakness(es) identified?                      Yes      X  No 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered  
   to be material weaknesses?                       Yes      X         None reported 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for 
 major programs:                  Unmodified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be  
 reported in accordance with Circular A-133, 
 Section 510 (a)                        Yes   X           No 
 
Identification of major programs: 
 
CFDA Number       Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
 
     20.205                                               Highway Planning and Construction 
 
 
 
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 
 and Type B programs:      $ 300,000 
     
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee:                 Yes   X No 
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Section II – Findings– Financial Statement Audit 
 
Significant Deficiencies  
 
2015-01 Bank reconciliations not completed in a timely manner:  

During our audit, it was noted that bank reconciliations were not being prepared in a timely 
manner.   

 
Effect:  
Proper bank reconciliations prepared in a timely manner help safeguard cash by detecting errors 
on the part of the bank or City. In addition, bank reconciliations help create stronger internal 
controls and establish accountability for cash. Delays in completing bank reconciliations increase 
the risk that errors and irregularities may occur and go undetected, which can lead to a 
misappropriation of funds. 
  
Recommendation:  
We recommend that the City prepare and finalize bank reconciliations in a timely manner, within 
30 days of the bank statement date. 
 
Management’s Response: 
The City will complete the bank reconciliations in a timely manner.   

 
2015-02 TDA Claims were not submitted in a timely manner:  

During our audit, it was noted that the City has not yet submitted its TDA claims for the 2015 
fiscal year.   

 
Effect:  
By not submitting the claims, the City has not received the money from the County Treasury, 
causing a negative fund balance in the Transit fund and having a negative effect on investment 
earnings.   
 
Recommendation:  
We recommend the City file its claims for the 2015 fiscal year and continue to file claims in a 
timely manner.  
 
Management’s Response: 
The City plans on having all TDA claims current and will prepare TDA claims timely. 
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Section III – Findings and Questioned Costs – Major Federal Award Program Audit 
 
None reported in the current fiscal year. 
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Section IV – Status of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
None reported. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

To the Board of Directors 
City of Taft/Ford City-Taft Heights 
  Sanitation District 
Taft, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant of the City of Taft / Ford City-Taft Heights Sanitation District (the WWTP), as of and for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, which collectively comprise the WWTP’s basic financial statements, as listed in the 
table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions.



 

Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Wastewater Treatment Plant of the City of Taft / Ford 
City-Taft Heights Sanitation District, California, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, 
for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
 
Management has omitted the Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing 
information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by 
this missing information. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison 
information on page 15 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part 
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Other Information  
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
WWTP’s basic financial statements. The Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget 
and Actual – Capital Projects Fund is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. The Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual 
– Capital Projects Fund is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 31, 2016, on our 
consideration of the WWTP’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe 
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the WWTP’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 

 
 
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP 
Culver City, California 
March 31, 2016 

2 



 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and investments  $            2,569,459 
Accounts receivable                     15,135 
Interest receivable                          350 
Due from the City of Taft, net                1,254,561 

Total Current Assets                3,839,505 

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable:
Land 18,750                    
Construction-in-progress 421,361                  

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation:
Machinery and equipment 7,297                      
Structures and improvements 718,588                  

Total Noncurrent Assets 1,165,996               

Total Assets 5,005,501               

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 6,037                      
Accrued payroll 1,910                      
Compensated absences 4,571                      

Total Current Liabilities 12,518                    

Total Liabilities 12,518                    

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,165,996               
Restricted 3,826,987               

Total Net Position 4,992,983$             
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
CITY OF TAFT / FORD CITY - TAFT HEIGHTS SANITATION DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

 Governmental 
Activities 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



Net
(Expense)/Revenue

and Changes in
Net Position

Governmental 
 Expenses Activities

Governmental Activities:
General government 958,158$     76,805$      752,779$       -$                  (128,574)$                 

Total Governmental Activities 958,158$     76,805$     752,779$      -$                  (128,574)                  

General Revenues:
Investment earnings 29,959                      
Other revenue 15,168                      

Total General Revenues 45,127                      

Change in Net Position (83,447)                     

Net Position, Beginning of Fiscal Year 5,022,757                 

Prior Period Adjustments 53,673                      

Net Position, Beginning of Fiscal Year, Restated 5,076,430                 

Net Position, End of Fiscal Year 4,992,983$               

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Function/Program
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ASSETS
Cash and investments 2,493,945$      75,514$        2,569,459$      
Accounts receivable 15,135          15,135             
Interest receivable 350                  350                  
Due from City of Taft 1,254,561        1,254,561        

Total Assets 3,748,856$      90,649$        3,839,505$      

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$                 6,037$          6,037$             
Accrued payroll 1,910            1,910               

Total Liabilities 7,947            7,947               

FUND BALANCES
Restricted 3,748,856        82,702          3,831,558        

Total Fund Balances 3,748,856        82,702          3,831,558        
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 3,748,856$      90,649$        3,839,505$      

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
CITY OF TAFT / FORD CITY - TAFT HEIGHTS SANITATION DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015



Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 3,831,558$               

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of net position are different because:

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current 
period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental 
funds. This balance reflects WWTP's compensated absences. (4,571)                      

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in 
governmental activities are not current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 1,165,996                

Net Position of Governmental Activities 4,992,983$              

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

6

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
CITY OF TAFT / FORD CITY - TAFT HEIGHTS SANITATION DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015



REVENUES
Intergovernmental -$                 752,779$          752,779$         
Use of money and property 29,237              722                   29,959             
Charges for services 76,805              76,805             
Other 15,168              15,168             

Total Revenues 29,237              845,474            874,711           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government                      906,862            906,862           
Capital outlay                      234,694            234,694           

Total Expenditures                      1,141,556         1,141,556        

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over Expenditures 29,237              (296,082)          (266,845)          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 131,200                                 131,200           
Transfers out (131,200)          (131,200)          

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 131,200            (131,200)                              

Net Change in Fund Balances 160,437            (427,282)          (266,845)          

Fund Balances, Beginning of Fiscal Year 3,588,419         509,984            4,098,403        

Fund Balances, End of Fiscal Year 3,748,856$       82,702$            3,831,558$      

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
CITY OF TAFT / FORD CITY - TAFT HEIGHTS SANITATION DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015



Net Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds (266,845)$                 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
differs from the amounts reported in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities, the costs of those assets are allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. 
This activity is reconciled as follows: 

Cost of assets capitalized 234,694$             
Depreciation (50,515)                184,179                     

Debt repayments are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.
The repayment is not an expense in the statement of activities, as it is a 
reduction of a long-term liability. This amount reflects the difference between
compensated absences accrued and compensated absences paid for the period. (781)                          

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (83,447)$                  

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
CITY OF TAFT / FORD CITY – TAFT HEIGHTS SANITATION DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The primary function of this organization is the operation and maintenance of the sewer treatment facility 
serving the City of Taft (the City) and the Ford City-Taft Heights Sanitation District. In accordance with the 
terms of the “Joint Exercise of Powers Agreements” between the City of Taft, Taft Heights, and Ford City 
Sanitation District dated May 29, 1950, amended March 7, 1966, restated April 24, 1972, and restated 
August 21, 1991, covering the “Joint Sewage Project – 1972,” the City of Taft was designated to act on its 
own behalf and on behalf of each of the other agencies, to operate and maintain the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant (WWTP). All costs to operate and maintain the facilities shall be paid by the City of Taft and the other 
agencies in the following cost share ratios: 
 
 52 percent shall be paid by the City of Taft 
 19 percent shall be paid by the Taft Heights Sanitation District 
 29 percent shall be paid by the Ford City Sanitation District  
 
The WWTP has access to the services and facilities of the City and the City’s staff. The City assists the 
WWTP in the planning, financing, acquisition, construction, and maintenance or operation of the activities 
undertaken by the WWTP in accordance with the agreements and the applicable state and federal law. The 
costs incurred and paid by the City on behalf of the WWTP may include a part of the salaries and benefits of 
the City officers and employees who performed services for the WWTP, and are reimbursed by the WWTP. 
 
The financial statements of the WWTP have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (USGAAP) as applied to governmental units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental 
accounting and financial reporting. The more significant of the accounting principles are described below: 
 
A. Reporting Entity  

 
The City of Taft operates the WWTP pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement noted above. 
The WWTP is not a separate legal entity and therefore is not included as a component unit of the City. 
Because of the City’s oversight responsibilities, the funds of the WWTP are included within the fund 
structure of the City. The financial statements of the WWTP do not purport to, and do not, present fairly 
the financial position of the City of Taft as a whole or the Ford City or Taft Heights Sanitation Districts 
as a whole.  

 
B. Fund Accounting 

 
The accounts of the Wastewater Treatment Plant are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is 
considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and 
expenditures. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon 
the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. 
The WWTP uses two funds as follows: 
 
Capital Projects Fund – the Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.  

 

Special Revenue Fund – the Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.  
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
CITY OF TAFT / FORD CITY – TAFT HEIGHTS SANITATION DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

C. Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus 
  

Consistent with the City’s implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments, the WWTP financial 
statements report information on both the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting. The 
differences between the two presentations are discussed below.  
 

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are presented on an “economic resources” 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all the WWTP’s assets and 
liabilities, including capital assets, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The 
Statement of Activities presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues 
are recognized in the period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized when the liability is 
incurred. Interfund activities (such as transfers) are eliminated from these statements.  
 

Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
 
Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance for each fund. A separate statement is presented to report 
the differences in fund balance as presented in these statements to the net position presented in the 
Statement of Net Position. All governmental funds are accounted for on a “spending” or “financial flow” 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and 
current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance is their net 
current assets, which is considered only to be a measure of available resources. Governmental fund 
operating statements present a summary of sources and uses of available resources during a period by 
presenting increases and decreases in net position. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become measurable and available to 
finance expenditures of the current period. Accordingly, revenues are recorded when received in cash, 
except that revenues subject to accrual (generally 60 days after fiscal year end) are recognized when due. 
Revenues susceptible to accrual are investment earnings and assessments from member governments.  
 
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related 
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long term obligations which are recognized 
when due. Because of their current financial resources focus, expenditure recognition for governmental 
fund types excludes amounts represented by non-current liabilities. Since they do not affect net current 
assets, such long-term amounts are not recognized as governmental fund expenditures or fund liabilities. 
 

D. Budgetary Policy and Control 
 

1. General Budget Policies 
 
The Taft City Council approves each fiscal year’s budget for the WWTP as part of the overall City 
budget submitted by the City Manager prior to the beginning of the new fiscal year. Public hearings 
are conducted prior to its adoption by the Council. All appropriations lapse at year-end. The City 
Council has the legal authority to amend the budget at any time during the fiscal year. The City 
Manager has the authority to make adjustments to the operating budget within program areas. 
Transfers of operating budget appropriations between program areas or to or from appropriated 
reserve accounts, use of unappropriated fund balances, cancellation of appropriations and all changes 
in capital improvement project budgets require the approval of the City Council. 
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
CITY OF TAFT / FORD CITY – TAFT HEIGHTS SANITATION DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
D.   Budgetary Policy and Control (Continued) 

 
2. General Budget Policies 

 
The City maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the 
appropriated budget approved by the City Council. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level 
at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) for the operating budget that 
is the program area – total for all funds. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management 
control device during the fiscal year for the Governmental Funds. 

 
3. Encumbrances 

 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the 
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employed in the governmental funds. Encumbrances do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.  
 

E. Cash/Investment Policy 
 
In order to maintain an effective investment program, all cash is pooled with the cash and investments of 
the City of Taft and amounts not required for day-to-day financial transactions are invested as approved 
by the Taft City Council on a pooled basis and earnings are allocated to each fund on the basis of its 
average cash balance at the end of each quarter. Investments are carried at fair value.  

 

F. Capital Assets and Depreciation 
 

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery, and equipment, are reported in 
the Statement of Net Position. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial individual cost of more 
than $500. Sensitive items with costs below $500 are also included. Such assets are recorded at historical 
cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued 
at their estimated fair value on the date donated.  
 
Capital assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. This means 
the cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to expense 
each year until the asset is fully depreciated. The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital 
assets over the useful lives of these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each fiscal year 
represents that fiscal year’s pro-rata share of the cost of capital assets.  

 

Depreciation of capital assets is charged as an expense against operations each year and the total amount 
of depreciation taken over the years, called accumulated depreciation, is a reduction in the book value of 
the capital assets. The WWTP has assigned the useful lives listed below to capital assets.  
 

 Structures and improvements    20-40 years 
 Machinery and equipment       5-20 years 
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
CITY OF TAFT / FORD CITY – TAFT HEIGHTS SANITATION DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

G. Estimates  
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.  
 

H. Use of Restricted Resources 
 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the WWTP’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. Restricted resources are 
defined as resources received from outside agencies dedicated for specific projects or purposes.  

 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS  
 

The WWTP’s cash and investments are pooled with the funds of the City for deposit and investment 
purposes. Interest on pooled cash and investments is credited to the funds based on each prospective fund’s 
average cash balance at each quarter end. Detailed information concerning the City of Taft’s pooled cash and 
investments can be found in the City’s Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The 
WWTP’s cash and investments balance at June 30, 2015 is $2,569,459.  
 
The WWTP’s cash and investments are held within the City of Taft’s investment pool. As the WWTP does 
not hold specific investments or deposits in its name, the cash and investments are not evidenced by deposits 
or securities that exist in physical or book entry form.  
 
NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the following changes in capital assets occurred: 
 

Governmental Activities

 Beginning 
Balance      

July 1, 2014 
 Prior Period 
Adjustments Additions Deletions

 Ending 
Balance      

June 30, 2015 
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Land 18,750$        -$                 -$                 -$               18,750$         
Construction in Progress 132,994        53,673         234,694        421,361         

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 151,744        53,673         234,694        440,111         
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

Machinery and equipment 284,425        284,425         
Structures and improvements 2,696,723     2,696,723       

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 2,981,148                                                               2,981,148       
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:

Machinery and equipment (272,631)       (4,497)          (277,128)        
Structures and improvements (1,932,117)    (46,018)        (1,978,135)     

Total Accumulated Depreciation (2,204,748)                        (50,515)                          (2,255,263)     

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 776,400                            (50,515)        725,885         
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net 928,144$      53,673$        184,179$      -$               1,165,996$     

 

Depreciation expense of $50,515 was charged to general government on the Statement of Activities for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. 
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
CITY OF TAFT / FORD CITY – TAFT HEIGHTS SANITATION DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

 
NOTE 4 – INTERFUND TRANSFERS  
 
Interfund transfers as of June 30, 2015 were as follows: 

Fund Transfers in Transfers out
WWTP Capital Projects 131,200$     -$                   
WWTP Special Revenue 131,200         

Total 131,200$     131,200$       
 

 
The transfer into the Capital Project Fund is for building a reserve that will be used at a future date for large 
maintenance projects and/or reconstruction of the facility. This is an agreed upon amount between all District 
members.  
 
NOTE 5 – COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the following changes occurred in the governmental activities 
compensated absences: 

Governmental Activities
 Balance 

July 1, 2014  Additions  Deletions 
 Balance

June 30, 2015 
 Due in 

One Year 
Compensated Absences 3,790$        4,571$    (3,790)$     4,571$          4,571$     

Total governmental activities
long-term debt 3,790$        4,571$    (3,790)$     4,571$          4,571$     

 
 

Compensated Absences 
 

The short-term portion of the liability is recorded in the various funds and is determined to be the amount due 
to employees for future absences, which is attributable to services already rendered, and which is expected to 
be paid during the next fiscal year. The long-term portion is recorded only in the Statement of Net Position. 
As of June 30, 2015, all compensated absences are current.  
 
NOTE 6 – NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES 
 
Net position is divided into three captions.  These captions apply to net position as determined at the 
government-wide level and are described below: 
 
Net Investment in Capital Asset describes the portion of net position which is represented by the current net 
book value of the District’s capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt issued to finance these 
assets. 
 
Restricted describes the portion of net position which is restricted as to use by the terms and conditions of 
agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions which the District 
cannot unilaterally alter. These principally include debt service requirements. 
 
Unrestricted describes the portion of net position which is not restricted as to use.    
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
CITY OF TAFT / FORD CITY – TAFT HEIGHTS SANITATION DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

 
NOTE 6 – NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (Continued) 
 
Fund balances are divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the WWTP is 
bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use if the resources in the governmental funds.  The 
classifications are as follows: 
 

1. Nonspendable Fund Balance 
That portion of a fund balance that includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) 
not in a spendable form, such as prepaid items, inventories of supplies, or loans receivable; or (b) 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, such as the principal portion of an 
endowment.   

 
2.  Restricted Fund Balance 

That portion of a fund balance that reflects constraints placed on the use of resources (other than 
nonspendable items) that are either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.   

 
3.  Committed Fund Balance 

That portion of a fund balance that includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision making 
authority, and remain binding unless removed in the same manner.   

 
4.   Assigned Fund Balance 

That portion of a fund balance that includes amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent to 
be used for specific purposes, but that are neither restricted nor committed.  Such intent needs to be 
established at either the highest level of decision making, or by an official designated for that purpose.   
 
Enabling legislation authorizes the WWTP to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment of 
resources (from external resource providers) and includes legally enforceable requirements that those 
resources be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation.  Legal enforceability 
means that the WWTP can be compelled by an external party, such as citizens, public interest groups, 
or the judiciary to use resources created by enabling legislation only for the purposes specified by the 
legislation. 

 
5. Unassigned Fund Balance 

That portion of a fund balance that includes amounts that do not fall into one of the above categories. 
A General Fund is the only fund that should report this category of fund balance.   

 
NOTE 7 – Prior Period Adjustments 
 
A prior period adjustment of $53,673 was made in the government-wide statements due to understatement of 
construction in progress in the prior fiscal year. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Original Final
REVENUES

Use of money and property -$                  -$                  722$             722$                  
Intergovernmental 823,727        823,727        752,779        (70,948)              
Charges for services 70,000          70,000          76,805          6,805                 
Other 15,168          15,168               

Total Revenues 893,727        893,727        845,474        (48,253)              

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 747,527        747,527        906,862        (159,335)            
Capital outlay 52,500          52,500          234,694        (182,194)            

Total Expenditures 800,027        800,027        1,141,556     (341,529)            

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 93,700          93,700          (296,082)       (389,782)            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 37,500          37,500                           (37,500)              
Transfers out (131,200)       (131,200)       (131,200)                             

Total other financing sources (uses) (93,700)         (93,700)         (131,200)       (37,500)              

Net Change in Fund Balance                                   (427,282)       (427,282)            
                 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Fiscal year 509,984        509,984        509,984                              

Fund Balance, End of the Fiscal Year 509,984$      509,984$      82,702$        (427,282)$          

                     

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
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 Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

Budgeted Amounts  Actual 
Amounts 

CITY OF TAFT / FORD CITY - TAFT HEIGHTS SANITATION DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Final
Budget

REVENUES
Use of money and property 30,164$            29,237$         (927)$                 

Total Revenues 30,164              29,237           (927)                   

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 123,864                             123,864             

Total Expenditures 123,864                             123,864             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
   Over Expenditures (93,700)            29,237           122,937             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 131,200            131,200                               
Transfers out (37,500)            37,500               

Total other financing sources (uses) 93,700              131,200         37,500               

Net Change in Fund Balance                      160,437         160,437             

Fund Balance, Beginning of Fiscal Year 3,588,419         3,588,419      

Fund Balance, End of the Fiscal Year 3,588,419$       3,748,856$    160,437$           
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
CITY OF TAFT / FORD CITY - TAFT HEIGHTS SANITATION DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015



REVIEWED BY: 
CITY CLERK: 

 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: CITY MANAGER: 

 

 
City of Taft Agenda Report 

 
 
 

DATE: May 17, 2016 
 

TO: MAYOR MILLER AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

AGENDA MATTER:  
PHASES 3, 4, AND 5 OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH RADIAN 
DESIGN GROUP, INC. FOR TAFT TRANSIT CENTER 
 

SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
On January 19, 2016, the City Council approved a Professional Services Agreement with Radian 
Design Group, Inc. for the first two phases of professional design services for the Taft Transit Center 
in an amount not to exceed $32,010.  Radian Design and City Staff have completed the first phase of 
the project, the Preliminary Design Phase.  The project team has completed approximately 80% of 
the Design Development phase, which included a schematic design phase.  
 
Through the KernCOG, the City of Taft was allotted $1,400,000 under the Public Transportation 
Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement Account Program (PTMISEA) funds, 
originally with no local matching requirement and no firm deadline.  However, KernCOG informed 
Kern County cities that many of their projects needed to be completed by next June 1, 2017, or 
otherwise lose their funding.  In order to keep the project proceeding quickly and without delays, the 
next phases need to be approved. 
 

Company 
Design 

Services 
Construction 
Management 

Total 

Radian Design Group, Inc. $69,355 $37,345 $106,700 
 

Above is the original approved bid by Radian Design, with the first two approved phases coming out 
of the Design Services amount. City staff recommends that the City Council approve the next three 
phases to prepare the construction documents, process project approvals through the City, and to 
prepare documents needed for the bid package for construction of the Transit Center.  City staff will 
be processing final project approvals at Planning Commission and City Council meetings in June 
2016, which will include a public comment period on the final designs.  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Motion to approve Phases 3, 4, and 5 of a Professional Services Agreement with Radian Design 
Group, Inc. for Construction Documents, Agency Review and Approval, and Bidding preparation 
services for the Taft Transit Center in an amount not to exceed $53,550. 
 

FUNDING SOURCE:   PTMISEA Grant ($1,400,000) 
 

ATTACHMENT (Y/N):   Professional Services Agreement w/Exhibits A and B  
  Radian Design Group Certificate of Liability Insurance 

Radian Design Group, Inc. Proposal 
 

PREPARED BY:   Mark Staples, Director, Planning & Community Development 



AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) made this ___th day of May, 2016, by and 
between the CITY OF TAFT (“City”) and Radian Design Group, Inc. “Consultant”), 
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
  
 WHEREAS, City wishes to continue to use Consultant to provide professional design 
services of the Taft Transit Center, which includes, but is not limited to, design of architectural 
and engineering, Construction Document, Agency/Review Approval, and Bidding Phase plans 
and documents for the Taft Transit Center, which is to include offices for the Taft Area Transit 
(TAT), station stops for TAT and Kern Regional Transit, and bus fleet storage. The project is 
intended to provide 1) A Transit Center Building with an approximately 1,650 square foot 
Transit Office, approximate 2,200 square foot Meeting Room/Event Center, with a 20 foot 
breezeway separating the uses but all under one roof structure; and an approximate 2,000 square 
foot Outdoor Event flex space with optional shade structure on an approximate 150’ x 180’ site, 
2) Office space to accommodate the Taft Area Transit (TAT) employees and drivers, 3) Station 
hub for TAT and Kern Regional Transit buses, 4) Bus fleet storage for TAT, Kern Regional 
Transit, and employee personal vehicles, 5) Designed for paths of travel to connect and flow 
with adjacent separate CMAQ funded Park-n-Ride facility (City of Taft designed and managed 
project), and 6) Design of the Taft Transit Center should complement the Oil Worker’s 
Monument; and to perform the tasks for each phase of service as described in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof (the “Services”) and Consultant is 
agreeable thereto under the terms and conditions described hereinafter. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth 
hereinafter, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. The parties incorporate the foregoing recitals as if fully set forth herein verbatim; 
and 

 
2. City hereby contracts with Consultant to perform the Services and Consultant 

agrees to provide the Services under the terms and conditions hereinafter described. 
 

3. Consultant shall provide the Services at a cost not to exceed $53,550.00.   
Consultant’s compensation shall be calculated based on the number of hours expended by the 
Consultant charged at the rates more particularly described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and by 
this reference made a part hereof.  City shall pay Consultant based on invoices submitted by 
Consultant no more often than monthly.  The invoices shall contain a description of the Services 
performed during the period referred to in the invoice and of the employees performing them, 
and the number of hours expended, provided, however, that no such invoice shall include 
charges for Services not yet performed.  Each invoice shall contain such other information and 
documentation as City may reasonably require.  City Manager or his designated representative, 
shall have the right of reasonable review of each invoice and, at the conclusion of the review, 
City Manager shall place the matter on the agenda for the next available City Council meeting 



for consideration by the City Council.  Upon approval of each such invoice by the City Council, 
same shall be paid in the regular cycle of payments made by City for other bills and claims. 

 

a. In addition to the compensation payable to Consultant, City agrees to pay certain 
reimbursable costs that may be incurred by Consultant (the “Costs”).  These Costs 
may include procured services or other listed additional reimbursable expenses 
defined in Exhibit “B”, provided, however, that no Costs shall be incurred without 
City’s prior written consent.  All Costs billed in any invoice shall be itemized and 
describe how Costs were incurred and include copies of receipts where applicable.  
City shall have the right of reasonable review and approval of the Costs. Should the 
City wish to review periodic invoices outlining the individual costs during the 
previous monthly billing cycle the reviews shall not exceed two weeks in duration. 
Should 14 calendar days expire without a decision regarding the validity of individual 
expenses Radian Design Group shall consider the Invoice and all aggregate charges 
itemized in a specific Invoice approved in order to maintain overall project progress 
required to meet the deadlines established for the individual phases of the work. 
 

4. Consultant shall complete the individual scope of services for each phase within 
the time frames agreed upon by the City and Consultant for this Agreement. 

 
5. Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless City, its officers, 

Councilpersons, employees, and agents from any and all claims, liability, expenses, and 
damages, including attorney’s fees, arising out of or in any way connected to the professional 
architectural and engineering services performed by the Consultant and his sub-consultant team.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that City provides Consultant with information, 
records, or other documents necessary or convenient for Consultant to complete the Services, 
Consultant may rely on the accuracy and completeness of same (except as otherwise advised by 
the City in writing) and Consultant shall have no liability for same to the extent that they are 
incomplete or inaccurate. 
 

6. Without limiting Consultant’s obligations under Paragraph 5 of this Agreement, 
Consultant shall obtain and maintain during the life of this Agreement: 
 

a. Comprehensive liability insurance coverage, including premises – operations, 
products/completed operations, broad form property damage and blanket contractual 
liability, in an amount not less than $1 million per occurrence, automobile liability for 
owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles; and 
 

b. Such workers compensation insurance as required by statute. 
 
Consultant shall provide City with appropriate certificates of insurance and endorsements for all 
of the foregoing in which City, its officers, Councilpersons, employees, and agents are named as 
additional insureds and specifically designating all such insurance as “primary,” excluding 
professional liability insurance, and providing further that same shall not be terminated nor 
coverage reduced without ten (10) days prior written notice to City. 
 



7. Consultant shall not assign its interest herein or any part thereof and any 
attempted assignment shall be void.  All documents, reports, information, data, exhibits, maps, 
tables, charts, and all other matters generated by Consultant shall be the property of City and 
shall be delivered to City upon demand without additional costs or expense to City.  In the event 
Consultant needs to access City files in the performance of its Services, Consultant shall first 
receive authorization from the City Manager to do so. 

 
8. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving the other party 

ten (10) days prior written notice, provided that in such event Consultant shall be entitled to 
payment for those eservices rendered through the date of termination. 
 

9. All notices required to be given under this Agreement or by law shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed received by the party to whom directed if personally served or if 
faxed, emailed, or when deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, first class, faxed or 
emailed or addressed as follows:  
 
If to City:      If to Consultant: 
City Manager      Radian Design Group, Inc. 
209 E. Kern Street     Mark E. Russell, AIA – Principal Architect 
Taft, California, 93268    5301 Truxtun Avenue, Suite 300 
Fax:  (661) 765-2480     Bakersfield, CA 93309 
cjones@cityoftaft.org     Fax:  (661) 864-7677 

mrussell@radiandesign.net 
 

Any party may change its address or fax number by giving notice to the other party in the 
manner herein described. 
 

10. Time is of the essence with regard to each covenant, condition and provision of 
this Agreement. 
 

11. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of California. 
 

12. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties with regard 
to the subject matter herein and supersedes all prior oral and written agreements and 
understandings between the parties with respect thereto. 
 

13. This Agreement may not be altered, amended, or modified except by a writing 
executed by duly authorized representatives of all parties. 
 

14. In the event any action or proceeding is instituted arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to its reasonable attorneys’ fees and actual 
costs. 
 

15. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and the respective signature 
pages for each party may thereafter be attached with the body of this Agreement to constitute one 



integrated Agreement which is as fully effective and binding as if the entire document had been 
signed at one time. 
 

16. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, this Agreement shall not become 
effective and shall not be binding as to any party until all of the parties have executed this 
Agreement. 
 

17. Waiver by a party of any provision of this Agreement shall not be considered a 
continuing waiver or a waiver of any other provision, including the time for performance of any 
such provision. 
 

18. If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement is held by a court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions 
shall remain in full force and effect and not be affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby. 
 

19. City and Consultant each acknowledge that each party and their respective legal 
counsel have reviewed this Agreement and agree that this Agreement is the product of 
negotiations between the parties.  This Agreement shall be interpreted without reference to the 
rule of interpretation of documents that uncertainties or ambiguities therein shall be determined 
against the party so drafting the Agreement. 
 

20. Consultant agrees to take all reasonable measures to protect City’s computer 
systems from computer viruses including, without limitation, installation and maintenance of the 
latest versions of anti-virus software.  Any computer virus existing as of the date of this 
Agreement may be removed by Consultant at City’s request and at City’s sole cost and expense. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first 
hereinabove written. 

 
CITY OF TAFT     Radian Design Group, Inc., “Consultant” 
 
 
____________________________   ________________________________ 
Randy Miller, Mayor     Mark E. Russell, AIA - Principal Architect 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Yvette Mayfield, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jason Epperson, City Attorney 



 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

Exhibit “A” 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, (the “Agreement”), between the CITY OF TAFT (“City”) and 
Radian Design Group, Inc. (“Consultant”), for the City of Taft, Taft Transit Center. 

 
 
 

A. Construction Documents Phase 
 

Tasks: 
1. Prepare construction documents including architectural and engineering drawings, specifications 

and calculations for the purpose of Owner review and approval and for submission to agencies 
having jurisdiction for this project. Included drawing documents are: 
 
a. Floor, Site, Roof and Reflected Ceiling Plans 
b. Exterior Elevations and Interior Elevations 
c. Building Sections 
d. Materials and Finish Schedules 
e. Door and Window Schedules 
f. Details 
g. Civil engineering documents. 
h. Structural engineering documents and calculations. 
i. Mechanical engineering HVAC and Plumbing documents and calculations 
j. Electrical engineering power, lighting, data, communications, voice, fire alarm and security 

documents. 
 

2. Updated estimate of project cost 
3. Owner review and approval. 

 
 

B. Agency / Review Approval Phase 
 

Tasks: 
1. Submit drawings and specifications to agency for review and approval  
2. Address agency plan review comments and resubmit for approval. 

 
C. Bidding Phase 

 
Tasks: 

1. Assist Owner with bid documents required 
2. Attend pre-bid meeting 
3. Respond to bid questions 
4. Prepare addenda as needed  

 
 
 
 
 



 
   

 
 
 

 
 

Exhibit “B” 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, (the “Agreement”), between the CITY OF TAFT (“City”) and Radian 
Design Group, Inc. (“Consultant”), for the City of Taft, Taft Transit Center. 

 
Hourly Rate Schedule 

Effective July 1, 2015 
       

Hourly Professional Fees  
  
Principal $150.00 per hour 
Project Manager  $120.00 per hour 
Project Architect $110.00 per hour 
Project Job Captain $95.00 per hour 
CAD Technician  $85.00 per hour 
Administrative Assistant $65.00 per hour 
Clerical $55.00 per hour 

 
Additional Reimbursable Expenses (Additional services expenses unless agreed to 
otherwise in the City of Taft Contract for Architectural Services for this project) 
  
Consulting Engineers (Other than those 
     provided under the base agreement.) 

Direct Cost x 1.15 

Design Consultant Direct Cost x 1.15 
Specialty Consultants Direct Cost x 1.15 
Renderings, Models & Photographs Direct Cost x 1.15 
Application / Permit Fees Direct Cost x 1.15 
Commercial Printing Direct Cost x 1.15 
Travel Expenses (beyond City limits) Direct Cost x 1.15 

 
 



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate  holder  is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the  terms  and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

CONTACTPRODUCER NAME:
FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURER A :
INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADDL SUBRINSR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITSPOLICY NUMBERLTR (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)INSD WVD

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTED

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $JECT

$OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMITAUTOMOBILE LIABILITY $(Ea accident)
BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS AUTOS
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $HIRED AUTOS (Per accident)AUTOS

$

UMBRELLA LIAB EACH OCCURRENCE $OCCUR
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

$DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-WORKERS COMPENSATION
STATUTE ERAND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
N / AOFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2014/01)

SCANDER-01 AFRANCO

5/10/2016

Thelma Martinez
Fresno CSG-Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.
9 E. River Park Place East  Ste 310
Fresno, CA 93720

(559) 374-3560

Old Republic General Insurance Corp 24139

Radian Design Group Inc.
PO Box 81747
Bakersfield, CA 93380

Travelers Property Casualty Co of Amer 25674

A X 2,000,000
X X A1CG48891611 04/01/2016 04/01/2017 100,000

5,000
2,000,000
4,000,000

X 4,000,000

1,000,000
A X A1CA48891611 04/01/2016 04/01/2017

X Comprehensive X Collision Comp/Coll Ded. 1,000
XX 15,000,000

B ZUP13T0799716NF 04/01/2016 04/01/2017 15,000,000

X
A A1CW48891613 04/01/2016 04/01/2017 1,000,000

1,000,000
1,000,000

RE: Taft Transit Center
City of Taft, its officers, Councilpersons, employees, and agents are included as additional insureds per policy forms attached.
Endorsement(s) Attached:
General Liability Additional Insured
General Liability Additional Insured - Completed Operations
General Liability Primary

City of Taft
209 E. Kern Street
Taft, CA 93268



Radian Design Group, Inc.

04/01/2016

Nick Bellasis 04/01/2016

A1CG48891611

04/01/2016-04/01/2017
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.



ISSUED TO: RADIAN DESIGN GROUP, INC.
POLICY NUMBER: A1CG48891611
POLICY TERM: 04/01/2016-04/01/2017





Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) 
Or Organization(s) Location And Description Of Completed Operations 

WHERE  REQUIRED BY WRITTEN  CONTRACT ,BUT ONLY 
WHEN COVERAGE  FOR COMPLETED OPERATIONS  IS 
SPECIFICALLY  REQUIRED BY THAT CONTRACT 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

( 

( COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 20 37 0413 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED- OWNERS, LESSEES OR 
CONTRACTORS - COMPLETED OPERATIONS 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following : 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE  PART 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED  OPERATIONS  LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

c 

A. Section II - Who Is An Insured is amended to 
include as an additional insured the person(s) or 
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only 
with respect to liability for "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" caused, in whole or in part, by 
"your work" at the location designated and 
described in the Schedule of this endorsement 
performed for that additional insured and 
included in the "products completed operations 
hazard". 

However: 

1. The insurance afforded to such additional
insured only applies to the extent permitted 
by law; and 

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured
is required by a contract or agreement, the 
insurance afforded to such additional insured 
will not  be broader than that which you are 
required by the contract or agreement to 
provide for such additional insured. 

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following is added to 
Section Ill- Limits Of Insurance: 

If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the most we 
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the 
amount of insurance: 
1. Required by the contract or agreement ; or

2. Available under the applicable Limits of
Insurance shown in the Declarations;

whichever is less. 

This endorsement shall not increase the applicable 
Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations . 

CG 20 37 0413 ©Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1 

ISSUED TO: RADIAN DESIGN GROUP, INC.
POLICY NUMBER: A1CG48891611
POLICY TERM: 04/01/2016-04/01/2017
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City of Taft Agenda Report 
 
 
 
 

 
DATE: MAY 17, 2016    
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
 
 
AGENDA MATTER:  
 
RECEIVE AND ACCEPT RECORDS MANAGEMENT NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
REPORT FROM GLADWELL GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
Late last year the City Council approved entering in to an agreement with Gladwell 
Governmental Services, Inc. (GGS) for the purposes of performing a needs assessment for our 
records management.  This report will be utilized by the City Clerk’s Department over the next 
several years to budget and enact new and updated policies and procedures and procure new and 
needed systems for records management throughout the city.    
 
Attached is the final Needs Assessment Report provided by GGS under that agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion to receive and accept the Records Management Needs Assessment Report from Gladwell 
Governmental Services, Inc. 
 
IMPACT ON BUDGET (Y/N): NO  
 
ATTACHMENT (Y/N):  YES – Records Management Needs Assessment Report 
 
PREPARED BY:   City Clerk   
 
 

REVIEWED BY:            
CITY CLERK  
 

FINANCE DIRECTOR CITY MANAGER 

 

































































 
 

City of Taft Agenda Report 
 
 
 
DATE:  MAY 17, 2016 
 
TO:   MAYOR MILLER AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
   
AGENDA MATTER:  
 
2016-2017 APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The City Council must annually establish a spending limit for the coming fiscal year as a requirement of 
Proposition 4, which was adopted in 1979 and modified June 5, 1990, when voters approved Proposition 
111. 
 

Beginning with the 1990-91 appropriations limit, the annual adjustment factors changed. Instead of using the 
lesser of California Per Capita Income or U.S.C.P.I. to measure inflation, each city may choose: 
 

1. The growth in the California Per Capita Income, or the growth in the non-residential assessed 
valuation due to new construction within the city. 

 

2. Instead of using only the population growth of the city, each city may choose to use the population 
growth within its county. 

 

These are both annual elections. 
 

The decision as to which of the options to select must be done by a recorded vote of the City Council. The 
data necessary to calculate the increase in the non-residential assessed valuation for FY 2016-2017 is not 
available from the County Assessor's Office until late July or August 2016; however, the valuation for FY 
2015-2016 is available.   
 

It is recommended that the City adopt its 2016-2017 appropriations limit using the alternative factor of non-
residential assessed valuation for the inflationary adjustment.  The computation shows that the City's 
inflationary adjustment factor is 0.994045% and the appropriation limit for 2016-2017 fiscal year is 
$6,526,285 (see attached worksheet). 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt resolution entitled A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TAFT ESTABLISHING APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR 2016-2017. 
 
IMPACT ON BUDGET (Y/N):   Yes, setting 2016-2017 operating expenditure level. 
 
ATTACHMENT (Y/N):  Yes, Appropriation Limit Worksheet and Resolution 
 
PREPARED BY:   Teresa Binkley, Finance Director 
REVIEWED BY:            
CITY CLERK  
 

FINANCE DIRECTOR 
 

CITY MANAGER 

 



                     RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TAFT ESTABLISHING 

APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR 2016-2017 
 

WHEREAS, cities are required to establish appropriations limits pursuant to Proposition 111 each 
fiscal year; and 
 

WHEREAS, appropriations limits are developed based upon base year 1986-87 appropriations; and 
 

WHEREAS, the 1986-87 appropriations for the City of Taft have been set at $2,308,812; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City chooses the percentage change in California non-residential assessed valuation 
as a basis for computing the appropriation limit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City chooses as an adjustment factor the growth in the County population; and 
 

WHEREAS, based upon state formulas, the 2016-2017 appropriation limit is 0.994045% below the 
2015-2016 limit. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Taft that the City 
Council hereby establishes the appropriation limit for the 2016-2017 fiscal year at $6,526,285. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 17th day of May, 2016. 
 

 
________________________________ 
Randy Miller, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Yvette Mayfield 
City Clerk 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   }  
COUNTY OF KERN         } SS 
CITY OF TAFT         } 
 
     I, Yvette Mayfield, City Clerk of the City of Taft, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly 
and regularly adopted by the City Council of the City of Taft at a regular meeting thereof held on the 17th day 
of May 2016, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Council Members:     
NOES:  Council Members: 
ABSENT: Council Members: 
ABSTAIN: Council Members:   
 
______________________________ 
Yvette Mayfield 
City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 









 
 

City of Taft Agenda Report 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  MAY 17, 2016 
 
TO:   MAYOR MILLER AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
   
AGENDA MATTER:  
 
DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCES RECYCLING AND RECOVERY (CALRECYCLE) 
GRANT 
 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The City of Taft annually is eligible to summit a grant application to the Department of Resources 
Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) in the amount of $5,000 each fiscal year. The funds that are 
allocated to the city are to be used for the promotion, education, and advertising the recycling of 
beverage containers. The city has used these funds to purchase recycling containers and billboard 
advertisements in prior years. 
 
Beginning with the funding cycle for FY 2016-17 CalRecyle now requires that the city adopt a 
resolution and to submit the resolution with the online application. 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt resolution entitled A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TAFT AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION(S) FOR ALL CALRECYCLE GRANTS 
FOR WHICH THE CITY OF TAFT IS ELIGIBLE. 
 
 
 
IMPACT ON BUDGET (Y/N):   No 
 
ATTACHMENT (Y/N): Yes; Resolution. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Teresa Binkley, Finance Director 
 
 
REVIEWED BY:            
CITY CLERK  
 

FINANCE DIRECTOR CITY MANAGER 

 
 



RESOLUTION NO. ________________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TAFT  
AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION(S) FOR ALL CALRECYCLE 

GRANTS FOR WHICH THE CITY OF TAFT IS ELIGIBLE 
 

WHEREAS, Public Resources Code sections 48000 et seq. authorize the Department of 
Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) to administer various grant programs (grants) 
in furtherance of the State of California’s (state) efforts to reduce, recycle and reuse solid waste 
generated in the state thereby preserving landfill capacity and protecting public health and safety 
and the environment; and 
 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority CalRecycle is required to establish 
procedures governing the application, awarding, and management of the grants; and 
 

WHEREAS, CalRecycle grant application procedures require, among other things, an 
applicant’s governing body to declare by resolution certain authorizations related to the 
administration of CalRecycle grants. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Taft 
authorizes the submittal of application(s) to CalRecycle for all grants for which the City of Taft 
is eligible; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Taft that the Mayor 
or City Manager or his/her designee is hereby authorized and empowered to execute in the name 
of the City of Taft all grant documents, including but not limited to, applications, agreements, 
amendments and requests for payment, necessary to secure grant funds and implement the 
approved grant project; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that these authorizations are effective for five (5) years 
from the date of adoption of this resolution. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 17th day of May, 2016. 
 

 
 

________________________________ 
Randy Miller, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Yvette Mayfield 
City Clerk 



S:vol1/finance/Department of Conservation – CalRecyle/CalRecyle Application Resolution April 2 2016.doc 

 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA }  
COUNTY OF KERN  } SS 
CITY OF TAFT  } 
 
     I, Yvette Mayfield, City Clerk of the City of Taft, do hereby certify that the foregoing 
Resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the City Council of the City of Taft at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 17th day of May 2016, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:             Council Members: 
NOES:            Council Members: 
ABSENT:       Council Members: 
ABSTAIN:     Council Members: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Yvette Mayfield 
City Clerk 
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DATE:  MAY 17, 2016 
 
TO:   MAYOR MILLER AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
   
AGENDA MATTER:  
 
ARAMARK FOOD SERVICE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT #4 
 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
The Taft Modified Community Correctional Facility currently contracts with Aramark Correctional 
Services, LLC (Aramark) to supply meals to inmates and within the original agreement addresses a 
change in cost based on the Consumer Price Index every July 1. 
 
Amendment #4 is attached and is effective as of July 1, 2016 until June 30, 2017 with the increase 
in meals at an increase of 3.16%, the new cost per meals range from $3.429 to $1.796. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the Food Service Agreement Amendment #4 between the City of Taft and 
Aramark Correctional Services, LLC, and to authorize the Mayor to execute Amendment #4. 
 
 
IMPACT ON BUDGET (Y/N):   Yes 
 
ATTACHMENT (Y/N): Yes; Food Service Agreement Amendment #4 along with 

attachments with calculation for rate increase.  
 
PREPARED BY:   Teresa Binkley, Finance Director 
 
 
REVIEWED BY:            
CITY CLERK  
 

FINANCE DIRECTOR CITY MANAGER 
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DATE:  May 17, 2016  
 
TO:  MAYOR MILLER AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
 
AGENDA MATTER: 
 
PURCHASE OF SUNRIDGE SYSTEMS RIMS E-911 DATA ENGINEERING FOR THE E-
911 MAPPING SYSTEM FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT DISPATCH CENTER 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
On February 16, 2016 the Taft City Council approved the purchase of Sunridge Systems Mapping 

and ESRI licensing for the Police Dispatch Center.   Installation of the mapping system is complete 

minus the Data Engineering.  The Data Engineering is required so the Enhanced 9-1-1 software is 

compatible with the mapping layers and will be reimbursed to us by the State of California DGS 9-

1-1 services unit.  The cost for the Data Engineering is $2,500.00 and can be taken from the Drug 

Forfeiture account until it is reimbursed by the State of California.  This is the final component of 

the mapping system and once this is finished our Police Dispatch will have full complete mapping 

of the City of Taft and its surrounding areas which will include caller ID, and where they are 

located on the map.   

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve $ 2,500.00 from the Asset Forfeiture Fund to purchase Sunridge Systems RIMS 
E-911 Data Engineering for the E-911 Mapping System.   
 
FUNDING SOURCE: Asset forfeiture Fund  
  
   
ATTACHMENT (Y/N): Sunridge Systems Quotation 
 
 
PREPARED BY:  Ed Whiting – Chief of Police 
 
 
REVIEWED BY:            
CITY CLERK  
 

FINANCE DIRECTOR CITY MANAGER 
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DATE:  MAY 17, 2016 
 
TO:   MAYOR MILLER AND COUNCIL MEMBERS   
   
 
AGENDA ITEM: 
 
APPROVAL OF USDA REQUIRED RESOLUTION IN CONNECTION WITH 
AGREEMENT FOR FUNDS TO MODIFY AND UPGRADE WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT FACILITY 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The City is nearing the point of loan signing with the United States Department of Agriculture 
(USDA) for loan funds that were applied for to make needed modifications and upgrades to the 
City’s existing wastewater treatment facility.  The Council has already approved applying for the 
loan from the USDA in an amount not to exceed $3,619,000 and now needs to  approve the required 
resolution. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to adopt a resolution entitled A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TAFT PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF 
AGRICULTURE FORM LOAN RESOLUTION REQUIRED IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF CERTIFICATES OF PARTICATION SECURED BY AN 
INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT THAT WILL PROVIDE FUNDS TO MODIFY AND 
UPGRADE THE CITY’S EXISTING WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY. 
 
 
IMPACT ON BUDGET (Y/N):   NO   
 
ATTACHMENT (Y/N):  YES (Resolution) 
 
PREPARED BY:   City Clerk   
  
 
REVIEWED BY:            
CITY CLERK  
 

FINANCE DIRECTOR CITY MANAGER 

 



  
RESOLUTION NO. _______________ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TAFT 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE UNITED STATES 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FORM LOAN RESOLUTION 
REQUIRED IN CONNECTION WITH THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY 

OF CERTIFICATES OF PARTICATION OR OTHER FORM OF 
FINANCING SECURED BY AN INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
THAT WILL PROVIDE FUNDS TO MODIFY AND UPGRADE THE CITY’S 

EXISTING WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Taft (the “City”) received a Letter of Conditions dated April 10, 
2014 (the “Letter of Conditions”), from the United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Development 
(the “USDA”) establishing certain conditions under which the USDA would loan and/or grant money to 
the City to finance the modification and upgrade of the City’s existing wastewater treatment facility (the 
“Project”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City expects to enter into an Installment Purchase Agreement with the 
Taft Public Improvement Corporation to provide payments for Certificates of Participation or other form 
of financing that it intends to execute and deliver to evidence the USDA loan, in the principal amount of 
not to exceed Three Million Six Hundred Nineteen Thousand Dollars ($3,619,000) pending the delivery 
of the Certificates or other form of financing; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Letter of Conditions requires the City to execute a Loan Resolution to 
secure the loan (the “Loan Resolution”), the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the Loan 
Resolution is in the form of USDA (Form RD 1942-47) and is not subject to negotiation and change; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Loan Resolution provides for the issuance of bonds as the form of 
obligation and due to limitations in the California Constitution the City will execute and deliver 
Certificates of Participation or other form of financing to evidence the USDA loan, payable to the USDA; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Taft, as 
follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true 
and correct.  
 

SECTION 2.  The City Council approves the form of the Loan Resolution with the 
proviso that all references to bonds and the issuance of bonds in the Loan Resolution will include 
certificates of participation or other form of financing and the execution and delivery of certificates of 
participation or other form of financing. 
 

SECTION 3.  The City Council further finds and determines that:  (a) the City expects to 
execute and deliver Certificates of Participation or other form of financing to the USDA to repay the 
Loan used to finance the Project; and (b) the Loan Resolution, which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, is 
approved on behalf of the City. 
 



Resolution No. _________ 
Page 2 of 3 

 
SECTION 4.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 
   PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of May, 2016. 
 
 
 

            ______________________________________ 
Randy Miller, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Yvette Mayfield, 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA }  
COUNTY OF KERN          } SS 
CITY OF TAFT                  } 
 
     I, Yvette Mayfield, City Clerk of the City of Taft, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was 
duly and regularly adopted by the City Council of the City of Taft at a regular meeting thereof held on 
the 17th day of May 2016, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Council Members:     
NOES:  Council Members: 
ABSENT: Council Members: 
ABSTAIN: Council Members:   
 
______________________________ 
Yvette Mayfield 
City Clerk 



 

Resolution No. ___________ 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 EXHIBIT A 
 
 USDA FORM RESOLUTION 
 



 
 
  
RUS BULLETIN 1780-27                APPROVED 
 OMB. No. 0575-0015 

(Automated 8-97) LOAN RESOLUTION 
 (Public Bodies) 
      
 A RESOLUTION OF THE  CITY COUNCIL     
  
 OF THE                                                  CITY OF TAFT   

 AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE INCURRENCE OF INDEBTEDNESS FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING A 
 PORTION OF THE COST OF ACQUIRING,  CONSTRUCTING, ENLARGING, IMPROVING, AND/OR EXTENDING ITS 
 
     WASTEWATER TREATMENT SYSTEM 
 
 FACILITY TO SERVE AN AREA LAWFULLY WITHIN ITS JURISDICTION TO SERVE. 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the  CITY OF TAFT    
 (Public Body) 
(herein after called Association) to raise a portion of the cost of such undertaking by issuance of a loan agreement in the principal amount of: 
$3,619,000   
pursuant to the provisions of   CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE ; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Association intends to obtain assistance from the United States Department of Agriculture, 
 (herein called the Government) acting under the provisions of the Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act (7 U.S.C. 1921 
et seq.) in the planning. financing, and supervision of such undertaking: 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises the Association hereby resolves: 
  
        1. To have prepared on its behalf and to adopt an ordinance or resolution for the issuance of a loan agreement containing such 
 items and in such forms as are required by State statutes and as are agreeable and acceptable to the Government. 
 2. To refinance the unpaid balance, in whole or in part, of its loan agreement upon the request of the Government if at any time 
 it shall appear to the Government that the Association is able to refinance its loan agreement by obtaining a loan for such purposes 
 from responsible cooperative or private sources at reasonable rates and terms for loans for similar purposes and periods 
 of time as required by section 333(c) of said Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act (7 U.S.C. 1983(c)). 
 3. To provide for, execute, and comply with Form RD 400-4, "Assurance Agreement," and Form RD 400-1, "Equal 
 Opportunity Agreement," including an "Equal Opportunity Clause," which clause is to be incorporated in, or attached 
 as a rider to, each construction contract and subcontract involving in excess of $10,000. 
 4. To indemnify the Government for any payments made or losses suffered by the Government on behalf of the Association. 
 Such indemnification shall be payable from the same source of funds pledged to pay the loan agreement or any other legally per- 
 missible source. 
 5. That upon default in the payments of any principal and accrued interest on the loan agreement or in the performance of any 
 covenant or agreement contained herein or in the instruments incident to making or insuring the loan, the Government at 
 its option may (a) declare the entire principal amount then outstanding and accrued interest immediately due and 
 payable, (b) for the account of the Association (payable from the source of funds pledged to pay the loan agreement or any other  
 legally permissible source), incur and pay reasonable expenses for repair, maintenance, and operation of the facility 
 and such other reasonable expenses as may be necessary to cure the cause of default, and/or (c) take possession of the 
 facility, repair, maintain, and operate or rent it. Default under the provisions of this resolution or any instrument incident to 
 the making or insuring of the loan may be construed by the Government to constitute default under any other instrument 
 held by the Government and executed or assumed by the Association, and default under any such instrument may be 
 construed by the Government to constitute default hereunder. 
 6. Not to sell, transfer, lease, or otherwise encumber the facility or any portion thereof, or interest therein, or permit others 
 to do so, without the prior written consent of the Government. 
 7. Not to defease the loan agreement, or to borrow money, enter into any contractor agreement, or otherwise incur any liabilities 
 for any purpose in connection with the facility (exclusive of normal maintenance) without the prior written consent of the 
 Government if such undertaking would involve the source of funds pledged to pay the loan agreement. 
 8. To place the proceeds of the loan agreement on deposit in an account and in a manner approved by the Government. Funds may be 
 deposited in institutions insured by the State or Federal Government or invested in readily marketable securities backed 
 by the full faith and credit of the United States. Any income from these accounts will be considered as revenues of the system. 
 9. To comply with all applicable State and Federal laws and regulations and to continually operate and maintain the facility 
 in good condition. 
 10. To provide for the receipt of adequate revenues to meet the requirements of debt service, operation and maintenance, and 
 the establishment of adequate reserves. Revenue accumulated over and above that needed to pay operating and mainte- 
 nance, debt service and reserves may only be retained or used to make prepayments on the loan. Revenue cannot be used 
 to pay any expenses which are not directly incurred for the facility financed by USDA. No free service or use of the 
 facility will be permitted. 
 Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 1 hour per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, 
 searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  Send comments 
 regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing the burden, to Department of 
 Agriculture, Clearance Officer, OIRM, Room 404-W, Washington, DC 20250; and to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction 
 Project (OMB No. 0575-0015), Washington, DC 20503.. 
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 11. To acquire and maintain such insurance and fidelity bond coverage as may be required by the Government. 
 12. To establish and maintain such books and records relating to the operation of the facility and its financial affairs and to 
 provide for required audit thereof as required by the Government, to provide the Government a copy of each such audit 
 without its request, and to forward to the Government such additional information and reports as it may from time to 
 time require.  
 13. To provide the Government at all reasonable times access to all books and records relating to the facility and access to 
 the property of the system so that the Government may ascertain that the Association is complying with the provisions 
 hereof and of the instruments incident to the making or insuring of the loan. 
 14. That if the Government requires that a reserve account be established, disbursements from that account(s) may be used  
 when necessary for payments due on the loan agreement if sufficient funds are not otherwise available and  prior approval of the 
 Government is obtained.  Also, with the prior written approval of the Government, funds may be withdrawn and 
 used for such things as emergency maintenance, extensions to facilities and replacement of short lived assets. 
 15. To provide adequate service to all persons within the service area who can feasibly and legally be served and to obtain 
 USDA’s concurrence prior to refusing new or adequate services to such persons. Upon failure to provide services which 
 are feasible and legal, such person shall have a direct right of action against the Association or public body. 
 16. To comply with the measures identified in the Government's environmental impact analysis for this facility for the pur- 
 pose of avoiding or reducing the adverse environmental impacts of the facility's construction or operation. 
 17. To accept a grant in an amount not to exceed $    0.00 
 
 under the terms offered by the Government; that the     CITY MANAGER                                                                                                           
and 
                                                            of the Association are hereby authorized and empowered to take all action 
      necessary or appropriate in the execution of all written instruments as may be required in regard to or as evidence of such grant; 
 and to operate the facility under the terms offered in said grant agreement(s). 
 
 
 The provisions hereof and the provisions of all instruments incident to the making or the insuring of the loan, unless otherwise 
 specifically provided by the terms of such instrument,  shall be binding  upon the Association as long as the loan agreement are held or 
 insured by the Government or assignee. The provisions of sections 6 through 17 hereof may be provided for in more specific 
 detail  in the bond  resolution or ordinance;  to the extent  that the provisions  contained in  such bond  resolution or ordinance 
 should be found to be inconsistent with the  provisions hereof,  these provisions shall be construed as controlling between the 
 Association and the Government or assignee. 
 
 
 The vote was:  Yeas Nays Absent  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the                           CITY COUNCIL of the 
 
                                CITY OF TAFT has duly adopted this resolution and caused it 
 
 
to be executed by the officers below in duplicate on this  Tuesday     17th  day of  May, 2016 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

CITY OF TAFT 
 
 
 
By:                                                                       
Title:  Mayor 
 
 

Attest 
 
 
 
                                                                                 
Yvette Mayfield 
City Clerk of the City of Taft 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 
JASON EPPERSON 
City Attorney 
 
 
 
                                                                              
 
Dated:  May  17, 2016 
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CERTIFICATION TO BE EXECUTED AT LOAN CLOSING 
 
 
 
 
 I, the undersigned, as ______City Clerk___________________________________of the   
 

 ____City of Taft______________________________________ hereby certify that the    
 
___City Council_____  of the Association is composed of   five (5)  members, of whom ,   
 
__________ constituting a quorum, were present at a meeting thereof duly called and 

 
held on the  17th  day of  May;  and that the foregoing resolution was adopted at  
 
such meeting by the vote shown above, I further certify that as of  ____________,  the  
 
date of closing of the loan from the United States Department of Agriculture, said resolution  
 
remains in effect and has not been rescinded or amended in any way. 

 
 Dated, this  ___ day of  _____________. 
 

YVETTE MAYFIELD 
 
 
 

Title: City Clerk of the City of Taft 
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REVIEWED BY: 
CITY CLERK: 

 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: CITY MANAGER: 

 

 
City of Taft Agenda Report 

 
 
 
DATE: May 17, 2016 
 
TO: MAYOR MILLER AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
AGENDA MATTER:  
 
SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT – CHRISTIAN SERVICE EVENT HELD BY IGLESIA DE 
JESUCRISTO CANAAN ON THE CORNER OF 6TH ST AND MAIN ST AT THE RAILS TO 
TRAILS STAGE ON MAY 21, 2016. 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
Staff received a special event application and letter from Edgar Gil from Iglesia de Canaan requesting use 
of City property at the corner 6th and Main Street at the Rails to Trails Stage (APN 032-110-72,-73) for an 
outdoor Christian service event May 21st,  2016. Edgar Gil of Iglesia de Canaan will set up the event by 
5pm and will break down the event Saturday evening by 10:30pm. 
 
The event will include 50 chairs to provide seating for the congregation members, two tables providing 
refreshments, four speakers and two amplifiers to provide sound. Edgar Gil of Iglesia de Canaan has 
worked with the Planning Department who have reviewed the plan and addressed all safety concerns.  The 
applicant is requesting that Special Events fee be waived by the City Council so that funds maybe dedicated 
toward other event costs. The applicant makes no request for street closures. 
 
Conditions of approval:  
1. $1,000,000 liability insurance naming City of Taft as additional insured  
2. Signed encroachment permit/ Hold Harmless (if necessary) 
3. Trash receptacles 
4. Portable chemical toilets 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Motion to approve a resolution entitled A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TAFT APPROVING A SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT, AUTHORIZING EDGAR GIL OF IGLESIA DE 
JESUCRISTO CANAAN TO HOLD A CHRISTIAN SERVICE EVENT ON CITY PROPERTY ON 
THE CORNER OF SIXTH STREET AND MAIN ST AT THE RAILS TO TRAILS STAGE ON MAY 
21ST, 2016. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   N/A 
 
ATTACHMENT (Y/N):  Yes, Resolution, Edgar Gil of Iglesia de Canaan Letter, Application, 

Liability Insurance, Aerial Map, and 501c3 
 
PREPARED BY:   Mark Staples, Director, Planning & Community Development 



RESOLUTION _____________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TAFT APPROVING 
A SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT, AUTHORIZING EDGAR GIL OF IGLESIA DE 

JESUCRISTO CANAAN TO HOLD A CHRISTIAN SERVICE EVENT ON CITY 
PROPERTY ON THE CORNER OF SIXTH STREET AND MAIN ST AT THE RAILS 

TO TRAILS STAGE ON MAY 21st , 2016 
 

WHEREAS, Edgar Gil of Iglesia de Jesucristio Canaan has submitted a Special Event Permit 
Application, requesting to hold a Christian service event on City property on the Rails to Trails stage at Sixth 
Street and Main Street (APN 032-110-72, -73) on May 21st , 2016; and  

 
WHEREAS, Edgar Gil of Iglesia de Jesucristo Canaan shall provide sufficient trash receptacles and 

portable chemical toilets, and shall clean up all trash and debris at the conclusion of the event. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to waive the Special Events application fees so that Edgar Gil 

and Iglesia de Jesucristo Canaan can dedicate those funds toward other event costs. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Taft, 
California, approve the special event as follows:  

 
Set-up:  May 21st, 2016, 3:30pm to 5:00pm 
Christian service event: May 21st, 2016; operating 5:00pm to 10:00pm 
Breakdown of event: May 21st, 2016, by 10:30pm 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 17th day of May, 2016  

 
________________________________ 
Randy Miller, Mayor  

 
ATTEST:  
 
__________________________________ 
Yvette Mayfield, City Clerk  
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )  
COUNTY OF KERN  ) SS  
CITY OF TAFT   )  
 

I, Yvette Mayfield, City Clerk of the City of Taft, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was 
duly and regularly adopted by the City Council of the City of Taft at a regular meeting thereof held on the 17th 
day of May, 2016, by the following vote:  
 
AYES:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:  
NOES:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:  
ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  
 
__________________________________ 
Yvette Mayfield, City Clerk 
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